
 
 
 
 
A Meeting of the COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held at 
the Winnersh Community Centre, New Rd, Wokingham 
RG41 5DU on MONDAY 21 NOVEMBER 2016 AT 7.00 PM 
 
 
 

 
Andy Couldrick 
Chief Executive 
Published on 11 November 2016 
 
 
 
 
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s 
website. 

 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control. 

Public Document Pack



 
 

Our Vision 

A great place to live, an even better place to do business 

Our Priorities 

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child 
achieving their potential 

Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and 
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth 

Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and 
supported by well designed development 

Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough 

Improve the customer experience when accessing Council 
services 

The Underpinning Principles 

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax 

Provide affordable homes 

Look after the vulnerable 

Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life 

Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel 
efficiency 

Deliver quality in all that we do 

 



 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 
Councillors  

Philip Mirfin (Chairman) Michael Firmager (Vice-
Chairman) 

Chris Bowring 

Ken Miall Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey David Sleight 
Bill Soane Shahid Younis  

 
Substitutes 

Parry Batth Lindsay Ferris Clive Jones 
Chris Smith   

 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

WARD SUBJECT 
PAGE 
NO. 

    
18.    APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

    
19.    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 
September 2016. 

5 - 10 

    
20.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

    
21.    PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

To answer any public questions. 
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of the 
public to ask questions submitted under notice.  
 
The Council welcomes questions from members of the 
public about the work of this Committee. 
 
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can 
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the 
Committee or an item which is on the Agenda for this 
meeting.  For full details of the procedure for submitting 
questions please contact the Democratic Services 
Section on the numbers given below or go to 
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions 

 

    
22.    MEMBER QUESTION TIME 

To answer any Member questions. 
 

    
23.    WOKINGHAM TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION 

To consider a report on progress relating to the 
regeneration of Wokingham Town Centre. 

11 - 60 

   
 

 

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions


 

24.    REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT - IMPACT OF NEW 
PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS 
To consider a report on changes to the Council’s 
Procurement Regulations and the resulting benefits to the 
organisation. 

61 - 66 

    
25.    HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT UPDATE AND 

IMPROVEMENTS TO WORK AND SCHEME 
PROGRAMMES 
To consider an update report on highway maintenance 
activities and schemes and the development of future 
work programmes. 

67 - 72 

    
26.    UNAUTHORISED TRAVELLER ENCAMPMENTS 

To consider a presentation on unauthorised traveller 
encampments across the Borough. 

 

    
27.    WORK PROGRAMME 

To consider the Committee’s work programme for 
2016/17. 

73 - 76 

 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Neil Carr Principal Democratic Services Officer 
Tel 0118 974 6058 
Email neil.carr@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE  
COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 5 SEPTEMBER 2016 FROM 7.00 PM TO 8.10 PM 
 
Committee Members Present 
Councillors:  Philip Mirfin (Chairman), Michael Firmager (Vice-Chairman), Ken Miall, 
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, David Sleight, Bill Soane and Shahid Younis 
 
Other Councillors Present 
Councillors: Parry Batth, Mark Ashwell and Angus Ross  
 
Officers Present 
Boniface Ngu Azeh (Principal Flood Risk and Drainage Officer), Francesca Hobson 
(Highways and Transport), Anne Hunter (Service Manager Democratic Services), Clare 
Lawrence (Head of Development Management) and Arabella Yandle (Democratic Services 
Officer) 
 
9. APOLOGIES  
An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Chris Bowring. 
 
10. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 June 2016 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
11. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
12. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Chairman invited members of the public to 
submit questions to the appropriate Members. 
 
12.1 Aaron Shone asked the Chairman of the Community and Corporate Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee the following question:  
Question 
When will WBC recognise that their wait and see policy concerning HMOs has failed in 
Shinfield Park and pursue a policy of enacting an Article 4 Directive to reduce the density 
of licenced and unlicensed HMOs operating in Shinfield Park? 
 
Answer 
Regulations and policies relating to HMOs are set out by Government and are relatively 
permissive. For an Article 4 Direction to be supported by the national office and not be 
called in by the Secretary of State, conclusive evidence of extraordinary circumstances 
must be provided.  Such circumstances could be pressures from students or tourists on 
accommodation. In the case of Shinfield Park, no such special circumstances exist. 
 
The Council would need to consult on an Article 4 Direction proposal and this would need 
to be supported by the majority of the residents of the area. Given that there have been a 
number of complaints, but from only a small proportion of residents, the Council is not 
satisfied that the Article 4 Direction would be supported by all local residents.  Also, the 
Council would need to provide a one year notice period for the implementation of an Article 
4 Direction and this may result in a greater number of properties being converted to HMOs 
in this period.  

5

Agenda Item 19.



 

 
The Council has been monitoring HMOs in Shinfield Park and there has not been a 
significant increase in HMOs over the last year and given the changes in legislation, HMOs 
are now less attractive to investors.    
 
The collection of the evidence would take significant resource and there would be no 
certainty any Article 4 Direction would be supported locally or nationally. Further, an Article 
4 Direction cannot address existing HMOs. 
 
12.2 Sue Dowds asked the Chairman of the Community and Corporate Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee the following question:  
Question 
Why has the council not considered parking as criteria for HMO licencing in Shinfield Park, 
given that parking conditions on the estate have been escalated to local councillors for the 
past 5 years? 
 
Answer 
Licencing criteria is set out by national legislation and can only address health and safety 
issues and specifically:-  
 

 That the proposed licence holder and any manager of the property is a fit and 
proper person; 

 That the proposed licence holder is the most appropriate person to hold the licence; 

 That the proper management standards are being applied at the property; 

 That the HMO is reasonably suitable, or can be made suitable, for occupation by 
the number of tenants allowed under the licence with at least the minimum 
prescribed standards of amenities and facilities.  These include the number, type 
and quality of shared bathrooms, toilets and cooking facilities. 

 
No other criteria such as parking can be taken into account in accordance with the 
legislation. If a license was refused on the basis of parking, this could be challenged 
through the courts and would constitute mal-administration on behalf of this Council.  
 
12.3 Doreen Cozens asked the Chairman of the Community and Corporate 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee the following question:  
Question 
Why has the council interpreted the national guidance to only include three storey houses, 
when many HMOs operating in Shinfield Park are two storey houses and not considered a 
problem? 
 
Answer 
The regulations in respect of HMOs are set out by national legislation which specifies that 
a licence is only needed for a HMO of more than five people where the building (or parts 
thereof being used as a HMO) is three stories plus in height.  The Council has no 
discretion in this or the ability to adopt a different threshold.  
 
Supplementary Question 
We have been told that there are places where there are two storey houses and they are 
recognised and are licenced.  You have given me the answer but it does not actually 
answer what we have been told.  This was told by another Councillor who actually knows 
of two storey HMOs and we have got lots of two storey HMOs.  Why are they not 
recognised and licenced in Wokingham? 

6



 

 
Supplementary Answer Provided by Clare Lawrence 
The regulations are clear.  I have not been given any examples of two storey HMOs that 
need to be licensed.  Maybe if the member of the public could explain where these sites 
are then the Council could go ahead and look into those, but certainly the information I 
have received from the Licensing Authority is that there is a requirement for the HMO to be 
three storeys in order to require a licence. 
 
13. MEMBER QUESTION TIME  
There were no Member questions. 
 
14. HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION  
The Committee considered a report, Agenda pages 11 to 19, which provided an update on 
Houses in Multiple Occupation at Shinfield Park. 
 
The issue had been previously considered by the Committee on 23rd November 2015 
when Members had requested that the planning and licencing position be monitored and 
reviewed for submission to the Committee in 2016.  It was also resolved that the Parish 
Council would be contacted to ascertain if it would fund the provision of additional parking 
at Shinfield Park  and finally that the Executive Member for Resident Services would 
consider the issue of licencing of HMOs, particularly in the Shinfield Park Area. 
 
Clare Lawrence stated that: 
 

 there were no new planning applications for HMOs and no outstanding planning 
enforcement issues; 

 there were 13 HMOs in Shinfield Park inspected as part of the process of licensing, 
but the only issue that could be considered through the licensing regime was the 
health and safety of the occupants;   

 there had been a small number of complaints to Environmental Health;   

 The Licensing and Environmental Health Teams have reported that there have 
been fewer applications for new HMOs as a result of the changes to the rules 
around investment for ‘buy-to-let’ making them less attractive to landlords; 

 the Shinfield Neighbourhood Plan would be going to Executive at the end of 
September and if agreed there would be a referendum to adopt the Plan by the end 
of the year.  This contains a policy relative to HMOs.  Parking was one of the main 
concerns that residents had regarding HMOs.  Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) 
was due to be considered by the Executive in September and if adopted and 
applied to Shinfield Park, this could address parking issues. 

 
Members raised the following points and questions: 
 

 Members queried how the Council knew that there had been less interest in HMOs?  
Clare Lawrence explained that this determination came from information received 
from the Licensing Team who reported a reduced number of phone queries from 
across the Borough. 

 Members queried the policy regarding parking provision for HMOs.  Clare Lawrence 
explained that the policy contained within the neighbourhood plan requires one 
space per bedroom on or off site. To determine off site availability of spaces a 
parking survey may be required to feed into the planning application process.  It 
was not easy to give a definitive answer as each case and site is unique.  The key 

7



 

question that would be applied in these situations was whether there was significant 
harm to residents – the survey would help in this assessment. 

 Members pointed out that car ownership for all houses averaged 2.4 which was 
above the two per household allowed for in Government policy for new builds.  
Clare indicated that the Shinfield site application had been allowed at appeal when 
Government policy did not encourage parking.  She stated that current Government 
policies required more parking provision than previously the case.  

 Members questioned the Government’s threshold for a licensable HMO as a house 
with three storeys and five occupants. Clare Lawrence reiterated that the Council 
could not go against this threshold without challenges through the courts and 
ombudsman.  She explained that Article 4 was the only exception but stated that 
this would be unlikely to be successful as it would need to be supported by the 
majority of residents; that ’extra-ordinary’ must be demonstrated, and because it 
would be contrary to the Government’s de-regulation policies. Further it would take 
one year to be implemented which might escalate issues with landlords changing 
residential properties to HMOs before the cut-off date. An Article 4 Direction cannot 
address existing HMOs or related issues and it was felt that CPE offered the 
greatest opportunity for addressing resident concerns. 

 Members asked if the local MPs could to be asked to assist in changing the rules to 
allow parking to be addressed for all HMOs.  Clare confirmed that current parking 
standards were evidence based.  Studies would have to be updated and further 
evidence gathered.  Residents however were free to contact their MPs to ask for 
this change to policy. 

 Members asked for a further update on the possibility of finding land for parking.  
Ward members and local residents were trying to ascertain who owned available 
land, but Clare Lawrence stated that no funds had been allocated for this purpose 
within Wokingham Borough Council.  Councillor Batth suggested that the attitude of 
some residents compounded the problem and raised the topic of some land at Old 
Whitley Wood Lane that was currently blocked because of travellers.  Highways 
were open to it being used for parking however the residents would need to go back 
to the directors of Residential Management companies to clarify funding for 
maintaining the land.    

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.     
 
15. SUDS STRATEGY  
The Committee considered a report on the SuDS Strategy, Agenda pages 21 to 24, which 
provided a long term vision for the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) within the 
Borough with a focus on managing flood risk and improving the water environment. 
 
Councillor Ross, Executive Member for Environment, outlined the expected impact of the 
Flood and Water Management Act 2010, which would have given Wokingham Borough 
Council responsibility for SuDs on new developments.  The Government however did not 
take this element forward instead proposing better use of the planning system and 
requiring the need to engage with developers. 
 
Francesca Hobson provided an update on the current pressures on flooding and risk 
management in the Borough and the benefits that would accrue from the adoption of 
SuDS through the planning process. 
 
Francesca went through the five sections in the SuDS Strategy.  She explained that the 
local plan update suggests that there was a need for 800-900 new houses per annum to 

8



 

be built in the Wokingham Borough catchment and that for this reason any approach to 
water management needed to be sustainable and appropriate.  She explained that the 
SuDS strategy looked at flood risk, water quality and biodiversity, which had to be an 
integral part of any strategy.  Francesca further stated that the River Loddon was currently 
failing under the EU Water Framework Directive because of high levels of phosphates 
found in the water and advised that SuDS offered a guide to the best methods of control 
for planners and designers taking into account land conditions such as the issue of 
infiltration where drainage was prevented by underlying clay. 
 
Francesca advised that consultation on the Strategy had started on 28 July and was due 
to end on 16 September and a number of positive comments had been received. The 
intention was that the Strategy would be updated and would be a live document which 
would enable it to be changed more easily and quickly. Due to this process and the fact 
that it would be included in the Core Strategy, under section CC10, it would have weight in 
planning terms.  It was noted that Wokingham Borough Council was one of the first 
councils nationally to have such a strategy and the first in Berkshire. 
 
Members raised the following points and questions: 
 

 Taking into account concerns about future expense in relation to maintenance and 

repairs, Members asked what work was being undertaken with developers to address 

this?  Francesca confirmed that either the Council would adopt the SuDS or developers 

would be required to put in a process to address this which would involve management 

companies dealing with the maintenance.  In addition the Council would calculate the 

commuted sums paid by developers to allow the Council to maintain the SuDS in future 

years.  The developer would be required to submit maintenance plans as part of the 

planning process and the maintenance companies should provide the Council with 

inspection details on a regular basis.  Francesca provided an example of the work 

being undertaken in Swallowfield where there was a swale and attenuation pond which 

would be the responsibility of the management company.   

 Members queried what would happen if a management company ran out of money or 

went out of business.  Francesca confirmed that the responsibility would fall back on 

the Council because of the overall responsibility of the Council as a Lead Local Flood 

Authority to manage surface water under the Flood and Water Management Act.  The 

Council would need to ensure they had the funds available for this eventuality; 

 In response to a question about whether there was a system to check existing SuDs 

and if assets could be designated Francesca responded that the Council has an asset 

register of features that could pose a flood risk if not maintained properly.  The Council 

currently focussed on assets that they owned, but would then move on to privately 

owned assets. The Council was required to have a list of assets that could be a threat if 

not properly maintained.  It also had the power to designate a flood risk feature to 

prevent changes being made without the approval of the Council.   Funding was not 

needed to register assets but was required to carry out inspections; 

 Members enquired how the WBC Strategy interfaced with other authorities and an 

example was cited of the 1000+ houses which were planned to be built near the 

boundary of Wokingham Without ward?   Francesca stated that quarterly meetings 

were held with the neighbouring local authorities and they did work closely together.  

9



 

Councillor Ross added that there was a Loddon Catchment Partnership which 

considered, amongst other things, pollution in the River Loddon; 

 It was acknowledged that phosphates in water from farming were a problem therefore 

Members queried what relationships were being built with farmers to address this 

issue?  The meeting was advised that the Council was working with other organisations 

including the NFU and other farming organisations on how best to tackle this problem.  

A project currently being looked at in Winnersh to try and reduce phosphates from the 

M4 and farming was cited. 

 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted 
 
16. WORK PROGRAMME 2016-2017  
The Committee considered its Work Programme, set out in the Agenda pages 25 to 31.   
 
Councillor Mirfin stated that he wanted the Committee to have the ability to consider 
arising issues as well as those that were programmed.  He therefore asked members of 
the Committee to notify him by mid-October of any emerging items they wished to be 
considered at the next meeting. 
 
The subject of Smart Motorways and their implications for the Borough were raised. The 
Democratic Services Officer was asked to investigate the feasibility of having this as a 
future agenda item. 
 
RESOLVED That: 
1) the review of the Voluntary Sector item be deferred until January 2017; 
 
2) Members should notify the Chair by mid-October of any emerging that they wished 

to be considered at the next meeting; 
 

3) the Democratic Services Officer to investigate the feasibility of having the 
implications on the Borough of Smart Motorways as a future agenda item; 
 

4) an update on Travellers be prepared for the November Committee meeting; 
 

5) the Work Programme, as amended, be confirmed. 
 
 
 

10



Town Centre Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny 21st November 2016 

Introduction to Regeneration  

Wokingham is undergoing a period of intense change.  

In 2004 the Council started the process of developing the Core Strategy (Local Plan) which identified the best 

locations for building the 13,232 new houses that needed to be delivered within the Borough in response to 

the South East Plan (The Regional Spatial Strategy).  

Following an extensive period of consultation and options reviews the decision was made to move forward 

with the majority of new homes being delivered in four Strategic Development Locations (SDLs) at Arborfield 

(3,500 new homes), South of the M4 (2,700 new homes), North Wokingham (1,600 new homes) and South 

Wokingham (2,500 new homes). Locations for the remainder of the new housing were identified through the 

Managing Development Delivery (MDD) process, which includes the allocation of Wokingham Town Centre 

as a good location for sustainable residential growth. A plan of the local development can be found in 

Appendix 1 – Overarching Plans  

In addition to identifying where this residential growth should occur within Wokingham borough the Core 

Strategy process also involved a comprehensive review of local infrastructure needs and what would be 

required to support both the existing and the proposed local residential levels. A variety of assessments 

were undertaken looking at areas such as roads, school places and leisure facilities. The infrastructure review 

also looked in detail at retail provision across the Borough with the Council commissioning Donaldsons to 

undertake a comprehensive Retail Study in 2007.  

The Donaldson’s report looked at both food (Convenience) and non-food (Comparison) retail across the 

borough, reviewing a range of factors such as local demographics, spend patterns, retail location and 

quantity of existing provision. The results of the study identified that there would be a significant shortfall 

within Wokingham Borough by 2026 of comparison and convenience retail floorspace necessary to support 

the size of the local population. The Core Strategy and Study went onto identify the best locations for this 

shortfall to be delivered in response to the SDL locations.  

Wokingham town centre was identified as a key retail and leisure growth location. This reflected the level of 

local development which would see 4,000 new homes delivered to the edges of Wokingham town centre, a 

growth of circa 30% on the existing town base and Wokingham’s classification as an important sub-regional 

centre within the South East Plan, and its identity as the major town centre within the borough.  

It should also be noted that the Council recently started the process of updating the Local Plan for the period 

running up to 2036. The update Local Plan will see further growth within the borough reinforcing a need to 

strengthen Wokingham town’s offer and status as a major town centre. Town Centre Masterplan 

In order to provide clear, distinctive and deliverable vision for Wokingham, the Core Strategy identified the 

need to produce an additional Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which would look specifically at 

development within Wokingham Town Centre. This document was titled the Wokingham Town Centre 

Masterplan SPD and was adopted in June 2010 following extensive public consultation.  

11

Agenda Item 23.



Work on developing a Masterplan began in 2008 when a public workshop was held to look at the level of 

development and where it would best be located to create a successful and sustainable town centre that 

met local resident and business’s needs.  

To further guide this process the Council commissioned a Retail Study Refresh from Nathaniel Lichfield and 

Partners (NLP) in February 2010 to ensure the Masterplan was based upon the latest retail needs 

information. The NLP findings continued to demonstrate a significant shortfall in retail needs for the area.  

The final Masterplan covers a comprehensive range of infrastructure including approaches to parking, public 

transport, highways, leisure, residential and retail growth within the town centre. The role of the Masterplan 

is to provide planning guidance on development within the town centre and it is a strong material 

consideration in the assessment of planning application within the town centre.  

A copy of the Masterplan can be seen in Appendix 1 – Overarching Plans or the full SPD document can be 

downloaded from the Council website at http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/planning-and-building-

control/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-and-documents/  

Council Led Regeneration Scheme 

The need for a strong local Masterplan vision had become increasingly evident in consideration of private led 

development schemes emerging in the town centre.  

Although, at the time, these schemes were generally acceptable in terms of planning policy there were 

concerns that they could result in overdevelopment and potentially lead to a fracturing of the town centre 

through the delivery of two retail locations which would work in competition rather than together to 

reinforce the retail circuits identified in the Masterplan. There were also concerns that the developments 

concentrated on profit making to the detriment of local residents and business. In addition it was becoming 

unsure whether the private schemes could be delivered due to market shifts and concerns over commercial 

viability.  

Following discussions in June 2008 it was agreed to move forward with a Wokingham Borough Council led 

regeneration scheme for Wokingham Town Centre. This initial phase of the project involved the locations of 

Elms Field, the Paddocks car park and Peach Place, with the Carnival Pool site being brought forward in 2014 

as a further phase of regeneration.  

As this represented the first major mixed use commercial led development the council had been involved 

with a decision was made to identify a development partner and project team with demonstrable 

experience in delivering this type of scheme. Following a comprehensive OJEU Competitive Dialogue 

procurement process Wilson Bowden and their partner company David Wilson Homes were identified as the 

Council’s preferred development partners in October 2010 for the Elms Field, Paddocks and Peach Place 

Regeneration projects.  

A further procurement process was undertaken in July 2013 to identify a multi-disciplinary project team and 

lead consultant to aid in developing a new Carnival Pool Leisure Hub and Multi-storey car park.  Ove ARUP 

was appointed in response to this process.  

Objectives of Regeneration 

12

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-and-documents/
http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-and-documents/


Taking into account public consultations and the work done for the Core Strategy and Masterplan the 

following objectives were set out for the Town Centre Regeneration project –  

 Improving the economic vitality and viability of the town  

 Improving the social vitality and viability of the town  

 Improving and enhancing public open spaces and active use of public realm  

 Enhancing the architectural quality of the town centre and public realm 

 Improving pedestrian accessibility in the town centre and access to the town  

Further information on the objectives can be found in Appendix 2 – Wokingham Town Centre Project 

Briefing Document.  

Benefits of Council as Developer 

A review of what needed to be done in order to meet the aforementioned objectives identified key points 

which need to be addressed for the town to succeed. It was also agreed that the Council were best placed to 

deliver regeneration directly if the following benefits are to be realised for the wider community.   

 The town is declining and needs successful regeneration to occur in a timely manner when many 

private schemes are failing or being delayed.  

 Regeneration needs to deliver the right balance of community and non-profit benefits and 

commercially profitable elements to meet the desires of local residents and businesses.  

 Local residents need to be able to access a better variety of quality facilities and services in the town, 

reducing their need to go elsewhere for shopping, socialisation and leisure.  

 The quality and range of retail, leisure and service offer should meet local aspirations and help 

differentiate Wokingham from other larger local neighbours or ‘clone towns’  

 Development needs to be high quality and flexible to remain successful for the long term  

 Key sites need to be developed with an overarching regeneration so that they work together to 

strengthen the town rather than in competition which risks weakening Wokingham  

 Wokingham needs to support and attract business by providing the infrastructure they request such 

as hotels, business spaces, schools and good quality housing to attract skilled employees 

 A need to secure a good range of local jobs and employment opportunities to meet the needs of a 

larger population  

 Regeneration is a starting point and needs to act as a catalyst to encourage other projects to come 

forward in the town, both private and public, and to attract ongoing investment in Wokingham  

 Regeneration must be financially viable, self-funding and must not rely on additional tax payer 

support to pay for its delivery. 

 The Council needs to invest in the community to create long term sources of funding for the council 

which are not dependent on local council tax or central government allocations.    

 

Project Scope  

The Council’s regeneration proposals encompass four priority projects in line with sites identified in the 

Masterplan. These have been designed to achieve both the objectives and the benefits identified within this 

report, as well as through ongoing consultation with local residents, businesses and professional advisors.  

13



 Peach Place Refurbishment* (major façade refurbishment of the Rose Street/Market Place corner, 

including the bringing forward of flats above Boots, replacement and enclosure of the staircase and 

conversion of the empty offices above Clarks to Residential)  

 Peach Place Redevelopment* (Creation of a new retail/leisure units facing out onto Peach Street and 

onto a new public square with residential above and facing onto Rose Street)  

 Elms Field and the Paddocks car park (Creation of new retail/leisure units, foodstore, hotel, Cinema, 

new road and residential units framing an enhanced town centre park)  

 Carnival Pool (Refurbishment of existing swimming pool and creation of a new leisure/community 

centre alongside a new multi-storey car park) 

*Although Peach Place is a single physical site, a decision was made to break this down into two projects, 

refurbishment and redevelopment phases, early on in the process. This would allow the Council to retain 

Boots and Clarks within the town as they, along with the integrated John Wood Sports unit, were deemed 

important anchor tenants to keep trading within Wokingham town centre. This will help maintain footfall as 

well as generating ongoing rental income which helps to offset the costs of delivering the regeneration.  

A plan of the key sites can be found in Appendix 1 – Overarching Plans  

Project Viability and Funding  

The overarching financial objective of the regeneration is that the project must be financially viable as a 

project and that it must not rely upon additional financial support from the tax payer.  

Effectively this means that the sales/investment value of the completed assets must exceed the value of the 

cost of their delivery. This includes the cost of delivering all non-value elements such as the park, play-area 

and leisure/community developments.  

In order to ensure this objective is met, the project is a success and risks are mitigated the Council has been 

undertaking the following control and review measures –  

 Continued financial appraisal reviews to ensure that the costs and income projections remain up to 

date and reflect latest information 

 Continued viability testing to ensure that the project generates an agreed minimum profit on cost 

percentage before it can proceed.  

 Further review of the Retail Study in 2013 to reflect commercial market conditions 

 Independent review of financial information through the planning pre-application process 

 Market Testing by Lettings advisors Strutt & Parker to ensure that any designs are fit for purpose and 

that there is market interest in the scheme and Wokingham  

 Pre-lets of key units to commercial tenants to ensure that income is guaranteed before 

commencement and that the right mix of businesses is secured for the town centre.  

Further information on viability can be found in Appendix 3 – Delivering Viable Regeneration (extract taken 

from the Regeneration Company microsite Financial Viability page) and Appendix 4 – Wokingham 

Regeneration Infographic April 2016.  

14



Appendix 2 – Overarching Plans  

 

The following plans show development around Wokingham and the town centre and are used to 

demonstrate context and identify locations for the projects involved in Regeneration.  

All of these developments contribute towards the ongoing process of improving Wokingham and are in line 

with the Core Strategy, Managing Development Delivery plan and the Wokingham Town Centre Masterplan 

SPD  

The plans are as follows  

 Plan 1 – Wokingham Development  

 Plan 2 – Wokingham Town Centre Masterplan SPD 

 Plan 3 – Town Centre Infrastructure Improvement projects  

 

Plan 1 – Wokingham Development  

This plan shows the location of the North Wokingham and South Wokingham Strategic Development 

Locations (SDL’s) and their proximity to the town centre regeneration projects.  

Please note that this plan was produced in 2013 and as such does not show the latest regeneration schemes 

as shown on Plan 3.  

 

 

 

15



 

Plan 2 – Wokingham Town Centre Masterplan SPD 

The following plan is taken from the Wokingham Town Centre Masterplan Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD).  

The role of the Masterplan is to provide planning guidance on development within the town centre and it is 

a strong material consideration in the assessment of planning application within the town centre. 

 

 

  

16



Plan 3 – Town Centre Infrastructure Improvement Projects  

This plan shows the major infrastructure projects delivered and planned for the town centre.  

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



»www.wokingham.gov.uk/xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

First word to be interstate bold
and the rest interstate light

»www.wokingham.gov.uk/xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

First word to be interstate bold
and the rest interstate light
wokingham town centre
Project Briefing Document
May 2009

>> www.wokingham.gov.uk 19



CONTENTS00
00 CONTENTS

01  PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT 1

1.1 The Town Centre Renaissance Vision 1

1.2 The Catalyst for Renaissance 1

1.3 Status of the Document 1

02 THE OPPORTUNITY 2

2.1 Wokingham 2

2.2 Growth and Revitalisation of the Town Centre 2

2.3 Planning Policy Context 2

03  THE DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS ROLE 7

3.1 Overview of the Development Partner’s Role 7

3.2 Development Partnership Principles 7

04 THE VISION 8

4.1 Vision Statement 8

4.2 The Key Factors 8

05 KEY REGENERATION PRINCIPLES 10

5.1 Key  Principles 10

5.2 Key Community Objectives 20

06  POLICY CONSIDERATIONS AND MARKET COMMENTARY 21

6.1 Planning Policy 21

6.2 Transport and Infrastructure 21

6.3 Market Commentaries 22

6.4 Community Safety 23

07 SPATIAL FRAMEWORK 24

7.1 Spatial Analysis 24

7.2 Towards a Spatial Framework 28

08 DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK FOR THE SITES 29

8.1 Peach Street/Rose Street 29

8.2 Elms Field and the Paddock Car Park 31

8.3 Shute End 32

09 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION 33

9.1 Best consideration/financial receipts/profits 33

9.2 Council Resource Management and Costs 33

9.3 Long Term Property and Facilities Management 33

10  THE DISCLAIMER 35

10.1 Confidentiality Clause 35

10.2 Misrepresentation Clause 3520



1

PURPOSE 
OF THE DOCUMENT

1.1  The Town Centre 
Renaissance Vision

The purpose of this Vision Document 
is twofold:

Town Centre Vision 

A primary function of this document 
is to provide a strategic vision for the 
renaissance of the town centre that 
is to be promoted by the Council in 
its role as custodian of the borough. 
It has been developed in consultation 
with key stakeholders, including local 
business and residents. 

The document establishes a series 
of renaissance principles which 
the Council has identified as key 
components to be promoted to 
ensure development within the 
town centre delivers the planned 
regeneration in a manner that 
improves the social vitality and 
economic viability of the town, whilst 
enhancing the physical environment 
by following an inclusive design, 
access for all, concept. This needs 
to be achieved by building upon the 
historical and cultural identity of 
Wokingham as a market town, and 
enhancing the features which make 
it unique amongst its neighbouring 
towns      

It is hoped, and intended, that the 
Town Centre Vision will provide a 
strong foundation on which the 
bidders can assess the character 
and function of the town centre and 
identify opportunities for growth and 
regeneration. The document also 
sets out the spatial and planning 
policy frameworks for the town, and 
clearly defines the aspirations of the 
Council for the renaissance of the 
town centre.  

Site Development Frameworks 

The document is also to act as 
a more specific development 
guide for the potential partners 
in the development of concepts 
and masterplans for the areas of 
opportunity, the identified sites, 
which are being promoted for 
comprehensively planned strategic 
development by the Council..

1.2  The Catalyst for 
Renaissance 

The Vision is intended to be 
aspirational and challenging yet also 
objective, commercially facing and 
deliverable. 

To ensure this is the case the Council 
has appointed DTZ to provide 
development consultant advice 
and support in the preparation of 
the vision and the procurement of 
the Council’s Development Partner. 
The urban planners and designers 
David Lock Associates have also 
been appointed to provide a spatial 
analysis of the town and support the 
Council and DTZ in the high level 
assessment of the potential of the 
town for strategic commercial and 
residential growth.        

The planning and delivery of 
development at the identified 
sites is seen as an important 
catalyst to drive forward the wider 
renaissance of the town centre. The 
sites are of strategic importance 
and offer the opportunity to 
deliver comprehensively planned 
development across a significant 
area of the town centre.

1.3  Status of the 
Document 

It is important to note that this 
document is not to be viewed as a 
Planning Document, and has no such 
function in terms of planning policy. 

Further information on planning 
policy context can be found in 
section 2.3.  

01
01 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT

21



2

2.1  Wokingham 

Prominently located in the county of 
Berkshire, Wokingham is a thriving 
historic market town set in the 
picturesque and economically active 
heart of the Thames Valley. The town 
has a strong heritage with links to 
authors such as Alexander Pope and 
Jonathan Swift as well as a large 
number of listed properties, some of 
which date back to the 14th Century. 

While the town is not classified as a 
primary or secondary regional centre 
within the draft South East Plan, it 
is an important sub-regional centre, 
and is one of the most attractive 
and popular districts in which to 
live. In 2007 the borough was voted 
the number one place to live by the 
Halifax Estate Agents. 

With a borough catchment of circa 
156,000 people, as at 2007, the 
borough has an affluent population, 
with a very attractive demographic 
profile comprising a significantly 
higher than average proportion 
of catchment group A,B and C1s 
compared to the UK as a whole. 
Within this demographic profile 
there is a large range of groups and 
ages including families and young 
people, adults and a rapidly growing 
mature population. House prices 
have historically been consistently 
above the UK average, and that of 
the South East.

Despite its attractive catchment 
profile however, Wokingham town 
centre has yet to realise its potential 
share of retail and leisure spend with 
much of its catchment travelling 
to neighbouring centres for higher 
order goods and services. This is 
a result of a number of factors 
including: 

• Limited private sector investment 
in the town centre resulting in 
limited stock

•  Limited retail offer which lacks 
the national retail anchors 
required to support a more 
diverse range of offering such 
as boutiques and specialist 
shops. This is partly as a result 
of poor quality and badly sized 
accommodation. 

• The range of public and private 
sector provided leisure and 
recreation facilities within the 
borough is adequate. However 
some facilities are in a poor state 
of repair and/or are not well 
linked to the town centre or to 
public open realm and therefore 
underutilised

• Poorly co-ordinated town centre 
management and marketing

• A limited non-retail employment 
base

• Under-utilisation of the 
architectural heritage and historic 
character of the town centre 

• A poor pedestrian environment 
resulting from car dominance

The Council is seeking to promote 
the sustainable growth and 
revitalisation of the town centre 
through the creation of a vibrant 
town centre environment which 
provides for the needs and 
aspirations of residents during the 
day and evening. It is also keen to 
attract non-residents to visit and 
spend time.    

2.2  Growth and 
Revitalisation of the Town 
Centre 

The opportunity presents itself for 
the delivery of comprehensive and 
strategically planned redevelopment 
within Wokingham town centre to 
significantly support the growth 
and renaissance of the town 
centre. The Council as major land 

owner and leader in regeneration 
is driving forward this opportunity 
and is seeking a private sector 
development partner with the 
vision, experience and capability to 
successfully plan and deliver this 
comprehensive development.

2.3  Planning Policy 
Context 

The opportunity to regenerate 
the town centre is set against a 
favourable planning policy context 
which encourages town centre 
development and supports major 
housing growth within the Borough.

Although it is expected that the 
development will stand alone in 
regards to transport and planning, 
Developers need to be aware and 
understand the impact on the town 
of the council’s aspirations within 
the Core Strategy. These include 
the development of SDL’s to the 
North and South of the town and 
the possible development of new 
link roads to the outside of the town 
centre. 

National Planning Policy 
Context

Planning Policy Statement 6 (PPS6) 
contains the Government advice 
on Planning for Town Centres.  The 
Government’s key objectives for 
town centres is to promote their 
vitality and viability by planning 
for the growth and development 
of existing centres and promoting 
and enhancing existing centres by 
focusing development in them and 
encouraging a wide range of services 
in a good environment, accessible 
to all.  Where existing centres are 
in decline, Councils should assess 
the scope for consolidating and 
strengthening these by seeking to 
focus a wider range of services, 
promote the diversification of uses 
and improve the environment.

THE 
OPPORTUNITY02

02 THE OPPORTUNITY

22



3

Figure 1 Retail Hierarchy and Population Comparison

T
h

is
 m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

an
ce

 S
u

rv
ey

 M
at

er
ia

l w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

an
ce

 S
u

rv
ey

 o
n

 
b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
h

e 
C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
 ©

 C
ro

w
n

 C
o

py
ri

g
h

t.
  U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 in

fr
in

g
es

 C
ro

w
n

 
C

o
py

ri
g

h
t 

an
d

 m
ay

 le
ad

 t
o

 p
ro

se
cu

ti
o

n
 o

r 
ci

vi
l p

ro
ce

ed
in

g
s.

  W
o

ki
n

g
h

am
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l L
ic

en
se

 
N

o.
 1

0
0

0
19

5
9

2
 2

0
0

8
.  

Fo
r 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
o

n
ly

.  
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
er

 c
o

p
ie

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

02 THE OPPORTUNITY

23



4

PPS6 also advises that Councils 
should prepare planning policies 
to help manage the evening and 
night-time economy.  Such policies 
should encourage a range of 
complementary evening and night-
time uses ensuring that provision 
is made where appropriate for a 
range of leisure, cultural and tourism 
activities.  It also recognises that 
street markets can make a valuable 
contribution to local choice and 
diversity in shopping as well as the 
vitality of town centres and the rural 
economy.  As an integral part of the 
vision for their town centre local 
authorities should seek to retain and 
enhance existing markets.

PPS6 also contains advice on 
assessing need and capacity 
for additional retail and leisure 
development; currently the 
Government is revising PPS6 and 
the revised version subject to 
consultation included changes in the 
way that need should be assessed.  
PPS6 would need to be taken into 
account in any planning submission. 

In addition to PPS6 other 
Government guidance in the series 
of Planning Policy Guidance Notes 
or Statements will be of relevance in 
the determination of any planning 
submission.  Worthy of note is the 
content of Planning Policy Guidance 
Note 17 (PPG17) which covers 
Open Space and Recreation; this 
requires development which results 
in the loss of any open space to be 
carefully justified and the onus for 
this is placed upon the developer.

Regional Planning Profile

Current Policy Framework   

The current operational regional 
policy framework influencing 
development in Wokingham is the 
Berkshire Structure Plan. This plan 
is in the process of being replaced 
by the South East Plan, which is 
expected to be adopted by early 
summer 2009.     

The Berkshire Structure Plan sets 
out through Policy S1 and schedule 1 
the role of centres within the region.  
Reading is the major regional centre 
for the wider Thames Valley and 
other centres sit below it in retail 
hierarchy terms. In terms of function 
and scale the plan identifies that 
Wokingham is predominantly  a 
convenience shopping centre with 
limited provision of comparison/
specialist floorspace.  

The aims for the future set out in 
the Structure Plan are to maintain 
and capitalise on the market town 
character of the centre, expanding 
floorspace in line with the need to 
improve service to the catchment 
population of the growing town; 
to maintain vitality and to reduce 
the leakage of local custom to 
adjoining centres.  It states that 
service improvements should focus 
on enhancing quality and variety 
in all types of in-town shopping, 
leisure and entertainment uses 
and increasing the proportion of 
comparison goods shopping.  Mixed 
use schemes should include high 
density housing to support the use 
of the town centre.

02 THE OPPORTUNITY

24



5

Emerging Regional Planning 
Policy 

The adoption of the (draft) South 
East Plan provides the strategic 
planning policy framework for 
the region and its policies and 
objectives guide and direct local 
planning policy. The draft South 
East Plan has passed through the 
public consultation and enquiry 
stages and has been modified by the 
Government Office for the South 
East following the Inspector’s report. 
Final consultation on the proposed 
changes has occurred and the final 
South East Plan is due to be adopted 
by early Summer 2009.     

Within the South East Plan, at 
policy WCBV1, it is important to 
note that Wokingham has not been 
identified as a settlement of regional 
importance or as a sub-regional hub 
and as such is not seen as a main 
centre for transport investment or 
development in the sub-region. It is, 
however, a centre of local importance 
and the growth of the borough will 
need to satisfy and cater for the 
local catchment population and the 
increase to this catchment resulting 
from the additional housing growth 
targeted for the district. 

For the sake of clarity the regional 
and sub-regional hubs identified in 
the Western Corridor and Blackwater 
Valley sub-region are as follows: 

Basingstoke:
a primary tier regional hub

High Wycombe:
a primary tier regional hub

Reading:
a primary tier regional hub

Slough:
a primary tier regional hub

Bracknell:
a secondary tier sub-regional hub

Maidenhead:
a secondary tier sub-regional hub

Newbury:
a secondary tier sub-regional hub

It is of strategic importance to note 
that the South East Plan identifies 
the area of Greater Reading as an 
area for major planned economic 
and housing growth, an area which 
incorporates parts of the Wokingham 
Borough administrative area.

Local Planning Context

Current Policy Context

The Wokingham District Local 
Plan was adopted in March 
2004.  This, together with the 
Berkshire Structure Plan, currently 
constitutes the development plan 
for the area for the purpose of 
determining planning applications.  
Following introduction of the Local 
Development Framework system 
the Council sought to save policies 
in the Local Plan until such time as 
the Local Development Framework 
is progressed; this was agreed by 
the Government Office for the South 
East.

There are several policies within the 
Local Plan that are seen as relevant 
for development within the town 
centre, notably policy WSH15. The 
Council seeks to retain and enhance 
the historic character of Wokingham 
as a market town and maintain its 
position in the sub-regional retail 
hierarchy. 

02 THE OPPORTUNITY

25



�

02 THE OPPORTUNITY

Emerging Local Planning Policy 
Context

The Council has submitted its Core 
Strategy to the Secretary of State 
and the Examination in Public started 
on 17 March 2009.  Policy CP15 of 
the Core Strategy Development Plan 
Document specifically relates to the 
renaissance of Wokingham Town 
Centre.  It highlights the fact that 
it is a major town centre suitable 
for growth which should maintain 
its position in the Berkshire retail 
hierarchy and retain and enhance 
the historic market town character.

Further information on how 
proposals for the town centre 
contribute to that policy are set out 
in the Town Centre Development 
Guide Supplementary Planning 
Document which has recently been 
the subject of public consultation.  
The Guide will help to establish 
a shared vision as to the most 
sustainable approach to the 
renaissance of the town centre 
and give a long term framework 
for future development.  The key 
objectives for the Town Centre are:

• To ensure that development 
occurs in a co-ordinated way;

• To create a high quality network 
of streets and spaces to improve 
the environment of the centre;

• To promote the centre as a 
shopping and leisure destination 
through re-development; and

• Promote traffic management 
and pedestrian / cyclist priority 
measures within the centre.

Please note that David Lock 
Associates, working closely with the 
Council’s appointed Town Centre 
Development Consultant DTZ, have 
been appointed by the Council to 

prepare a spatial framework for the 
town and undertake concept work on 
various sites based on the principles 
in the Town Centre Guide.

As part of the Submission Core 
Strategy the Council has identified 
that major housing development 
will occur to the north and south 
of Wokingham in the form of urban 
extensions for around 4,000 homes; 
this will increase the population 
catchment of the town and should 
assist in supporting the retail 
function.  As part of both strategic 
housing developments there will 
be strategic and local transport 
network improvements which should 
result in a reduction of through 
traffic in the Town Centre chiefly 
by providing an alternative route to 
the south of the town.  The Council’s 
consultants, WSP, are working on the 
strategic transport model to look at 
the impact of major developments 
around the town centre and to 
consider the traffic implications 
of opportunities and proposals 
identified in the Development Guide.

Special Protection Area status

The Town Centre is located within 
7km of the Thames Basin Heaths 
Special Protection Area (SPA).  This 
designation relates to EU legislation 
in relation to protected species 
of ground nesting birds; advice 
from Natural England is that new 
residential development within 5 
km of the SPA would be detrimental 
to the protection of the area unless 
mitigation can be provided in the 
form of Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace. The Council is currently 
working on its Interim Delivery Plan 
to provide mitigation land for which 
developers will then be expect to 
contribute through Section 106 
payments.

26



7

03 THE DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS ROLE

3.1  Overview of the 
Development Partner’s 
Role

The Council and the preferred 
Development Partner are to 
agree a Development Partnership 
Agreement, or such other joint 
venture agreement. This agreement 
will establish the mechanism to 
ensure the successful planning and 
delivery of the renaissance of the 
town centre identified sites. 

To ensure the successful delivery 
of the long term renaissance 
and growth of the town centre,  
Wokingham Borough Council is 
seeking an experienced Development 
Partner with a successful track 
record to work with it to plan 
and deliver the comprehensive 
redevelopment of the identified 
development sites.

It is intended that the Council 
will enter into a Development 
Partnership Agreement, or such 
other form of joint venture 
agreement, with the Development 
Partner. The Development 
Partnership Agreement, or other 
such contract, will be conditional 
upon the Development Partner 
producing a detailed Masterplan, 
for the approval of the Council, 
and the securing of a satisfactory 
planning consent for the approved 
Masterplan. Once satisfactory 
planning approval has been granted, 
and subject to all other conditions 
being met, the Development 
Partnership Agreement, or 
other such contract, will become 
unconditional and the Partner will 
progress the development phases in 
accordance with the term of the joint 
venture agreement.  

THE DEVELOPMENT 
PARTNERS ROLE03

3.2  Development 
Partnership Principles

Further information on the key 
development partnership principles 
being promoted by the Council can 
be found within the accompanying 
Invitation to Participate in Dialogue 
(IPD) document.  

27



8

4.1  Vision Statement

Wokingham will capitalise on its 
unique assets and historic character 
to create a busy, high quality and 
special town centre experience, 
with a thriving retail and business 
economy and an attractive and 
diverse social scene that provides 
for the lifestyles of all residents, and 
is attractive to visitors and those 
who work in the town. The town 
will be the heart of the community, 
supporting the well being of 
residents and visitors alike through 
the sense of place, the high quality 
of its architecture and environment, 
and through the broad range of 
opportunities it provides for active 
leisure and relaxing recreation. 

The town centre will be an attractive 
place for residents, workers and 
visitors alike to spend time; whether 
browsing the shops and market, 
taking time to enjoy the company 
of colleagues, friends or family over 
a drink or meal at one of the many 
cafes, bars and restaurants, spending 
time pursuing active leisure or 
simply appreciating the high quality 
public realm and managed open 
spaces. 

Wokingham will be regarded as one 
of the best places to live and work in 
the UK.    

4.2  The Key Factors 

It is worthy of note that Wokingham 
is an attractive town with a number 
of positive strengths on which to 
build, including the following:

• An affluent and active catchment 
population with perceived loyalty 
to the Town

• Low levels of crime and high 
levels of public safety

• Excellent levels of good health 
and high life expectancy within 
the borough

• Housing of good quality and high 
value relative the the UK average

• Access to good schools, both 
public and private education   

• Good rail access and private 
transport access links from the 
town centre to other regions and 
London    

• Situated in the M4 / M3 corridor 
close to Heathrow and Gatwick

• Wokingham Borough is also 
the home to some major global 
businesses 

•  Good access to countryside

• A good, if relatively limited 
in diversity, offer of cafes, 
restaurants and bars

• A car friendly attitude with 
ample public surface car parking 
for its existing profile, however 
the quality, design and location 
of spaces could benefit from 
improvement

• A town centre of historic 
character and architectural 
interest      

THE VISION04
04 THE VISION

28



9

• A compact town centre, which is 
well connected to its surrounding 
residential areas, and where 
walking and cycling can be 
further encouraged especially 
through the use of improved 
linkages

• A good selection of independent 
shops and some presence of 
national multiples including 
Waitrose and M&S 

However Wokingham town centre 
does suffer from some elements 
which impact on the ability of the 
town to function to its best which 
is constraining the potential of the 
town centre.   

• Limited road-based public 
transport access to the town 
centre

• Traffic congestion in the town 
centre at peak times 

• Poor legibility through the town 
centre for pedestrians due to 
lack of directional signage, street 
patterns and impact of road 
network with a dominance of 
traffic over pedestrians within the 
town centre 

• Not enough attractions and 
facilities for children and families, 
including limited opportunities for 
active leisure, relaxing recreation 
and family dining

• Relatively low levels of 
employment in non-retail 
occupations, such as offices and 
tourism, and limited opportunities 
for expansion (excluding the 
identified sites)

• Lack of leisure and recreational 
attractions and facilities for the 
more mature adult population 
and the elderly

04 THE VISION

• Poor quality, use and 
fragmentation of open spaces, 
green spaces and recreation 
areas

• Limited opportunities for active 
leisure and socialising for 
adolescents and young adults (14-
25yrs)  

• Poor marketing and management 
of what the town centre has to 
offer and its attractions

• No co-ordinated public realm 
strategy  

• No significant opportunity for 
indoor or outdoor events     

• Limited attractions for longer 
visits to the town centre

• Encourages single transaction 
visits rather than multi-purpose 
stays 

• Public car parking could be of 
higher quality and  more suitably 
located, with improved efficiency, 
and better integrated within the 
Town Centre.

29



10

5.1  Key  Principles

Opportunities do exist to further 
strengthen the town through 
carefully planned regeneration and 
long term management.   

Improving the Economic 
Vitality and Viability of the 
Town 

Retail 

The Council is keen to promote the 
sustainable growth of the retail offer 
within the town centre, however it 
is sensitive to the character of the 
town and its position in the regional 
hierarchy of retail centres.

 It is not the intention of the Council 
to seek to challenge such Primary 
Regional Centres as Reading  or 
Secondary Regional Centres such 
as Bracknell, Maidenhead, Windsor 
and Camberley, as classified in the 
draft South East Plan. Instead it 
plans to complement these centres 
by offering an alternative town 
centre experience based on its 
historic and compact qualities and 
its independent shops, supported by 
key anchors. The retail function of 
Wokingham town centre is to provide 
a comparison and convenience 
offer to cater for the borough’s 
local catchment and visitors.  The 
objective is to retain local customers, 
and attract new customers, by 
providing a retail and leisure offer 
that prevents leakage to nearby 
town centres rather than to compete 
with them by offering identical 
services. The strength of the local 
population catchment also provides 
opportunities for the provision of a 
strong niche, high value and quality 
retail offer.

Wokingham town is a low density yet 
compact commercial centre, which 

lacks coherence in retail terms and 
does not have any strong or flowing 
retail circuits. The centre is currently 
restricted in its ability to provide 
accommodation that is attractive to 
the multinational retailers with many 
of the existing units being of a small 
size. The town centre is also traffic 
dominated, with heavy vehicle flows 
along Peach Street and Broad Street, 
and into Rose Street effectively 
severing the town centre in to two 
halves. The servicing of shops can 
also create problems as deliveries 
can affect the flow of vehicular 
traffic through the town.

While the town centre does provide 
core retail space of a quantum that 
is currently considered adequate for 
the borough, the offer is considered 
to be relatively small and open for 
improvement and extension. The 
range of goods on offer is limited 
and the opportunity exists for 
sustainable growth and revitalisation 
of the retail provision through the 
introduction of greater choice and 
a more diverse comparison goods 
offer.  With an active and affluent 
catchment population, it is the 
Council’s opinion that the potential 
exists for the provision of more 
middle-high value comparison 
retailing, some limited additional 
convenience retail, and A3-5 uses.

The limited quantum and range of 
the retail offer, together with the 
restrictive nature of the road system, 
do have a detrimental impact on 
the attractiveness of the town for 
retailing and leisure. Currently the 
retail offer (excluding A3-5 uses) 
of the town centre predominantly 
provides for two principle markets, 
namely: 

• Higher value convenience 
retailing (Waitrose, Marks & 
Spencer Food Store)

• Low-middle value comparison 
retailing typically operated from 
small shop units

There are exceptions to this basic 
presumption, most notably the 
comparison goods offer provided 
by the Marks & Spencer store and 
some of the specialist higher value 
niche retailing. However the Marks & 
Spencer store is a relatively modest 
mixed offer unit and the number 
of medium-high value retailers, 
particularly multinationals is small, 
whether providing a clothing or 
non-clothing offer.  The number of 
medium-high end clothing retailers 
with a presence in the town is 
small, and non-clothing high-value 
national retailers are also not well 
represented. 

There is a qualitative need for town 
centre comparison goods retail 
development and opportunities 
exist for an improved comparison 
non-catering retail offer range 
across such types as: Clothing and 
Footwear; Audio and Visual; Crafts 
and Antiques; Jewellery and Gifts; 
Furniture, Household Appliances and 
Home Furnishings to increase the 
attractiveness of the town centre 
and to reduce the need for residents 
to travel for frequently purchased 
comparison goods. Wokingham 
is well placed to provide a strong 
base for the offering of medium to 
high value goods, both mainstream 
brands and more specialist niche 
offer.

An increase in the diversity of retail 
and catering establishments would 
increase the length of people’s 
visit (dwell time) and increase the 
vitality of the Town centre. There 
may be capacity for edge of centre 
comparison goods development.

KEY RENAISSANCE 
PRINCIPLES05

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

30



11

The Donaldson Retail study, 
completed in August 2007, indicates 
that there will be sufficient 
expenditure to support moderate 
town centre retail development in 
Wokingham post 2011 (in addition to 
that already committed, including 
Peach Place) of a scale appropriate 
to the size and role of the Town 
centre. Donaldsons indicate this 
could be in the region of 12,350 sq m 
by 2026. 

To improve the retailer demand for 
Wokingham, the provision of mixed 
sized retail units should attract a 
variety of new retailers. At this time 
the Council is not seeking to be 
overly prescriptive as to the mix of 
units, and is keen to understand the 
research-backed views and expert 
opinion of the Bidders as to the 
possible quantum and range of new 
retailers. However based upon the 
information in the retail study, the 
Council has some thoughts around 
the provision of large-scale units. 

It is not the intention of the Council 
to promote the introduction of 
large-scale convenience retailing in 
to the town centre. A more limited 
additional food-store offer may be 
acceptable but care would need to 
be taken to mitigate any possible 
negative impacts such development 
may have on the road network 
serving the town centre and on the 
historic character through scale and 
form of such development.

The Council is also not promoting 
the introduction of one large 
department store style anchor 
within the town centre. It may 
however look more favourably on 
the provision of medium sized offers, 
possibly to cater for the relocation 
and expansion of an existing major 
occupier or to attract a new anchor 
retailer.

The Council is also keen to 
achieve high quality and multi-
functional open space to host a 
variety of formal and informal 
outdoor activities and events. This 
should build on the success of the 
continental and farmers markets 
that regularly trade in the town 
centre. It is looking for the successful 
developer to identify and support 
such initiatives. The opportunity 
also exists for the enhancement and 
extension of the offer provided by 
the regular street market.

Given the profile of the current 
retail offer when compared to the 
catchment population it is perhaps 
not too surprising that the market 
capture is poor. Despite this there 
is a perception that the resident 
population would have strong loyalty 
to the town if it better provided for 
its needs.

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

31



12

Commercial Business 

It is also important to recognise 
that Wokingham is not only a retail 
centre but also functions as one 
of the borough’s key commercial 
business centres. This role is 
currently restricted due to the 
availability of suitable office space 
within the town and the competition 
faced from existing in-town office 
centres and out of town business 
parks in such towns as:  Reading; 
Bracknell; Maidenhead. The town 
centre has historically suffered 
from the proximity and perceived 
attractiveness of these competing 
regional centres and the out of 
town business parks such as Green 
Park, Thames Valley Business 

Park, and Winnersh Triangle. It 
is to such business centres that 
major employers have historically 
gravitated.  

It is not expected that Wokingham 
town centre will seek to compete 
directly with the major business 
parks and regional commercial office 
locations. The opportunity presents 
itself for office accommodation in 
the Town Centre to provide for the 
needs of small to medium sized 
businesses, catering for a more local 
office market.  As a commercial 
business centre Wokingham 
currently only provides for a limited 
local market, and the presence of 
the Council office in the town centre 
provides the main office working 

population of approximately 700 
people.  Current and emerging 
planning guidance is driving the 
provision of appropriate business 
accommodation such as offices 
towards the more environmentally 
and socially sustainable 
environments of town centres.  This 
policy supports the opportunity for 
Wokingham town centre to become 
a well established local office centre 
that is highly  accessible by both 
public and private transport.

The viability of the town centre could 
also benefit more directly from the 
close proximity of the Molly Millar’s 
Industrial Estate which is located 
on the edge of the town centre. The 
Estate currently suffers from poor 

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

32



13

pedestrian, cycle and mobility vehicle 
accessibility to the town which could 
be improved through careful access 
planning at the appropriate gateway 
to the town centre and greater 
permeability through the town.

Its attractiveness as a commercial 
business centre may also have been 
impacted by the relatively limited 
retail and leisure offer existing within 
the town. However the attractiveness 
of such locations as Wokingham 
town centre, as a business district, 
is increasing. With its strong rail 
links to London and the primary 
regional centres, and the increasing 
move back to town centres being 
promoted by the Government 
through the planning process, the 
opportunity exists to expand and 
improve the commercial business 
heart of the town. When viewed in 
tandem with the improvement and 
revitalisation of the retail and leisure 
offer of the town it is easy to see 
how Wokingham may become a more 
important business centre in the 
region.

The possible opening of the direct 
rail link to Heathrow and the 
existing regular rail links to Gatwick 
airport, Reading and London will 
make Wokingham a more attractive 
location, particularly if favoured by 
a stronger town centre retail and 
leisure offer.

Hotel and Tourism

Located in the heart of the Thames 
Valley, with good access to the 
road, air and rail network and 
benefiting from its historic character, 
Wokingham is in a prime position 
to take advantage of the tourism 
and visitor market. The region 
benefits from a number of national 
attractions, including: Thorpe Park, 
Windsor Castle, Ascot, and Legoland, 
and the attractions of the Thames 
Valley countryside.   

The Council is keen to promote 
the provision of high quality 
accommodation, facilities and 
services that will attract visitors, 
tourism and business to the town, 
particularly the provision of a high 
quality hotel and conference facilities 
and events that will attract visitors 
in their own right. Attractions and 
business services that may be 
provided include such uses as: spas; 
business conferencing; high quality 
dining. 

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

33



14

Improving the Social 
Vitality and Viability of the 
Town

Leisure and Recreation 

In parallel with the objective to 
improve the economic position of 
the town centre it is also an equally 
important objective for the Council 
to support the social, physical and 
cultural well being of residents and 
visitors alike. To achieve these aims 
the Council is determined to create 
a truly sustainable 18 hour economy 
for the town, during the week and 
at the weekends. It is seeking to 
achieve this through the provision 
of facilities and attractions that 
will encourage people to dwell, 
interact and spend more time within 
the town, and view it as a primary 

destination for leisure, recreation 
and the arts in addition to its local 
retail and commercial function.   

A positive strength of Wokingham 
is the emerging cafe, bar and 
restaurant attractions which are 
drawing people in to the town at 
all times of the day and evening. 
This is a good start, however it is 
relatively limited to providing a 
catering-based offer.  It is recognised 
that the town centre currently does 
not fully function as a destination 
where people would look to 
spend significant time relaxing or 
undertaking active leisure pursuits, 
and in so doing to spend more 
money within the borough. 

To achieve this position the town 
centre cannot act solely as a retail 
and/or commercial employment 

centre. It must also provide an 
environment with leisure and 
recreation attractions that generate 
interest and footfall during the day 
and the evening, which will expand 
the economic base of the town 
centre’s economy and make the 
town centre the social hub for the 
community. 

This environment should provide 
opportunities for new forms of 
commercially viable and attractive 
active leisure attractions that will 
cater for the full socio-demographic 
population, and build on existing 
attractions and events. The needs of 
a wide range of population groups 
from children and families, to young 
people, adults and retired people 
needs to be considered

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

34



15

The provision of support facilities 
for families that enables parents 
more opportunity to spend time 
in the town, such as crèches and 
children’s activity centres, are also 
opportunities the Council is keen to 
promote. There is also an increasing 
mature population within the town 
that needs to be taken into account 
when providing facilities. 

An integral part of the renaissance 
proposal for the Town Centre is 
the provision of new facilities, and 
support for new services, to benefit 
the health and well being of the 
community. The Council is seeking to 
promote healthy lifestyles, greater 
social interaction and improve 
accessibility to the arts and culture 
for residents and visitors to the 
town, and the proposal for the 

identified sites will need to support 
this key objective. The renaissance 
of the town centre should provide 
opportunities for people to be 
entertained and stimulated through 
the provision of arts and cultural 
activities and facilities.  

The Council is seeking to make 
Wokingham Town centre the 
focal point for social interaction 
and recreation by providing an 
environment and attractions that 
cater for the full range of socio-
economic groups using the town, 
including:

• Residents of all ages

• Residents with disabilities

• Workers

• Commuters 

• Tourists and visitors 

Such attractions and activities will 
support the retail and commercial 
offer during the day and establish 
a thriving social environment 
during the evening. It is important 
to note, however, that there are 
already a large number of leisure 
and recreation facilities within a 
relatively close distance of the 
town centre e.g. Dinton Pastures, 
Wokingham Theatre, the Winnersh 
Cinema. The Council does not wish 
to unduly impact on the viability of 
these existing uses and proposals for 
the Town Centre should not compete 
too directly with these provisions.  

35



1�

High Quality Living in the Town 
Centre 

The opportunity also presents itself 
for the establishment of a high 
quality and well designed mixed 
occupation residential heart to the 
town, bringing life to the town centre 
which will further support the 18 
hour economy. A broad range of 
lifestyles could be accommodated, 
from singles and couples living 
in high quality apartments and 
townhouses, to families living close 
to high quality green open spaces 
and public realm areas of active and 
passive leisure.     

Information relating to the councils 
approach to affordable homes and 
housing can be found in the current 
planning policy documents

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

36



17

Improving and Enhancing 
Public Open Spaces and 
Active Use of Public 
Realm 

Urban Park and Active Open 
Spaces

The creation of enhanced and 
actively used high quality green open 
spaces and public realm that will be 
at the living heart of the town is an 
important objective for the Council. 
The development of an urban park 
and aesthetically attractive public 
realm of high quality is a key priority. 
These spaces need to be both 
attractive and promote active use, 
providing opportunities for social 

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

interaction and cultural events. For 
example such events as town fairs, 
carnivals, open air theatre and music 
events can be promoted that will 
benefit the well-being of residents 
and attract visitors to the town. 

The Council would ask that bidders 
give thought to the types of 
activities and events that could 
be developed to activate the open 
spaces, green spaces and public 
realm, and would welcome ideas 
and proposals from bidders as to 
the possible programme of activities 
that could be promoted. Traditionally 
Elms Field has been the centre for 
active open space uses, currently 
supporting a large children’s play 
area and tennis courts. In the past 
it has also provided a pitch and putt 
course, which proved unviable and 
has subsequently been taken out of 
use.   

While it is not essential for the 
quantum of green open spaces and 
public realm currently provided to 
be retained the loss of any existing 
public open spaces and public realm 
will need to be carefully justified 
in accordance with Planning Policy 
Guidance Note 17. Proposals will need 
to clearly show how an alternative 
provision to the existing open green 
space will enhance the public realm 
and recreational offer for residents 
and visitors to the town and improve 
accessibility and linkage across the 
town centre. This is to ensure that 
the attractiveness and usability 
of such spaces is improved and 
sufficient scale of such open spaces 
and green spaces is retained. 

The opportunity exists to 
significantly enhance the public 
realm and active leisure and 
recreation uses, and potentially to 
provide a new gateway to the town.  

37



18

Passive Open Space and Public 
realm

It is important that the non-active 
public realm, including open green 
space, is of a high quality and that 
the design of features such as public 
art and architectural detailing is 
such that all new development will 
be sensitive to the character of the 
town centre.         

Enhancing the 
Architectural Quality 
of the Town Centre and 
Public Realm  

Wokingham town centre is an 
attractive and historic place, with an 
architectural heritage of which many 
towns would be proud. However 
the town centre does not make 
full use if its heritage and design 
quality. Limited investment in the 
public realm, relatively poor quality 
development undertaken during 
the 1960-70s, and roads running 
through the centre have all had a 
negative impact in the quality and 
attractiveness of the town. 

Development sensitive in design and 
quality to the character and heritage 
of the town, whilst bringing high 
quality contemporary 21st century 
style to the town, will enhance the 
environment and make Wokingham 
a more attractive place to live, work 
and spend time. Proposals for the 
identified sites are expected to 
respect and enhance the quality of 
design and aesthetic qualities of 
the existing town centre to create a 
unique and vibrant modern market 
town identity. 

Basic design principles that are 
viewed as important to the Council 
include the following: 

• The design, scale, mass and 
layout of buildings together with 
landscaping and materials provide 
high quality active frontages 
which must have regard to the 
surroundings

• Proposals should utilise 
architectural styles that are 
respectful of previous periods but 
reflect the modern 21st century 
market town that Wokingham has 
become

• Proposals should have regard to 
the nearby listed buildings and 
the conservation area located 
adjacent to Elms Field   

• Proposals must integrate well 
with neighbours and with the 
existing public realm.

High quality new areas of public 
realm, with new features of interest 
and interaction, can provide useable 
spaces that attract people to the 
town centre and become a focal 
point for leisure and relaxation.

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

38



19

Improving Pedestrian 
Accessibility in the Town 
Centre and Access to the 
Town  

To further support the promotion 
and attractiveness of the town centre 
as a friendly and accessible retail 
and leisure destination the Council is 
keen to work with bidders to identify 
how accessibility, pedestrian, cyclist 
and mobility vehicle flow patterns 
may be improved. The Council is 
also investigating how best it may 
improve the access to the town 
centre for private transport to make 
it a more attractive location for 
commercial employment. 

Proposals for the identified sites 
will need to have regard to the 
Council’s desire to reduce through 
traffic in the town centre, and make 
a positive contribution towards 
the improvement of the network 
of footpaths and cycleways. 

Consideration should be given as 
to how to encourage the use of 
alternative methods of transport 
through the provision of facilities 
for pedestrians and cylists as well as 
improvements to the links they use 
within the area. Of particular note is 
the improvement of the retail circuit 
within the town centre and access 
between the town centre and the 
railway station.    

Please note that the Council has 
appointed consultants to undertake 
transport modelling for the town, 
and proposals are being explored 
for the construction of roads to the 
south and north of the town and the 
pedestrian priority or traffic calming 
of the routes travelling through the 
town centre. The Council will allow 
bidders to meet with the consultants 
however such contact is to be 
carefully managed and all requests 
for meetings must be made to the 
Council which will arrange suitable 
times.          

Across the redline sites identified as 
having the potential for development 
there currently exists 284 public car 
parking spaces at the Paddocks and 
43 spaces at the Rose Street car 
park.  While it is not a requirement 
to significantly increase the 
number of car parking spaces to be 
provided other than to service the 
proposed development and in line 
with planning policy, the Council 
would not want to see a significant 
reduction in the number provided 
unless this is carefully justified. 
Improvement to the quality of public 
car parking is deemed an important 
objective. 

The Council is also seeking to 
strengthen the quality and form of 
the public realm and improving the 
legibility of existing pedestrian retail 
routes to provide cohesive retail 
circuits.

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

39



20

5.2  Civic Objectives

Improving Civic Facilities 

As an integral, if potentially longer 
term objective for the project, the 
Council will be looking to re-locate its 
central office located in Shute End, 
as part of the strategic development 
proposal. The new Civic Office will 
be of smaller scale than the current 
provision, which is in the region of 
90,000sq ft GIA, although exact 
requirements and scale have not 
been established at this time. 

Bidders should note, however, 
that the Council has a policy of 
supporting remote and home-
working, and while it will look to 
replicate civic facilities the amount 
of work-space required is expected 
to be significantly less than 
currently catered for. The quantum 
of space required by the Council 
may fall by up to 50% of current 
accommodation, and it is also 
prepared to consider the possibility 
of combining Council requirements 
with private sector business 
accommodation and/or cultural 
activities in a campus with shared 
facilities.

It is proposed that further 
information will be provided to 
the bidders during the detailed 
dialogue stage as to the Council’s 
civic requirements. This will enable 
bidders to prepare proposals for 
the re-use, or redevelopment, 
of the Shute End site and re-
provision of Council facilities and 
accommodation. 

05 KEY RENAISSANCE PRINCIPLES

40



21

6.1  Planning Policy

Current Saved Planning Policy

There are a number of saved policies 
that would be relevant to any 
application for development within 
the town centre; the most pertinent 
is policy WSH15 which follows from 
the structure plan policy S1.  The key 
strategy is that the Council will seek 
to retain and enhance the historic 
character of Wokingham as a market 
town and maintain its position in the 
retail hierarchy.  This would involve 
strengthening the retail character 
of the town, including enlargement 
of the market; examining ways of 
reducing through traffic; giving 
greater priority to the pedestrian 
while improving public transport and 
conserving areas of historic interest 
and enhancing environmental 
quality.

The local plan was informed by 
public consultation on ‘A vision for 
Wokingham’.  The results showed 
broad support for the creation of a 
safe, lively town by removing through 
traffic and creating a pedestrian 
friendly priority zone around the 
Market Place.  The plan sought 
to secure this vision by bringing 
forward development on sites 
identified in the plan for mixed or 
single use development; specifically 
to prioritise the mixed use proposal 
at Rose Street and the regeneration 
of the area around Wokingham 
Station to provide a station, public 
transport interchange and other key 
town centre uses, including office 
use.  Neither proposal has come 
forward within the plan period.

Related to the Vision for Wokingham 
the Council engaged Chestertons 
to develop a Wokingham Town 
Centre Strategy (2002) which 
proposed an action plan comprising 
approximately 70 projects to secure 
the Vision; this document was 
approved by the Council and widely 
accepted by stakeholders in the 
town.

Affordable Housing

Currently the Local Plan seeks to 
secure 26% provision of affordable 
housing on site for residential 
development over 15 dwellings or 
0.5 hectares.  The Submission Core 
Strategy seeks to increase this to 
30% as a minimum and up to 50% in 
locations where there is a need and 
this would be viable.  The Council will 
seek to negotiate the tenure, size 
and type of affordable units on a site 
by site basis and currently expects 
on site delivery without grant.

Developer Contributions and 
Infrastructure Impact Mitigation  

Currently the Council seeks 
to mitigate the impact of new 
development on services, amenities 
and infrastructure by securing 
financial contributions in line with 
the adopted Planning Advice Note.  
This is essentially a tariff based 
approach which covers education, 
libraries, open space, leisure, 
countryside access, highways, air 
quality and affordable housing.  The 
Council’s Local Development Scheme 
has identified that an Infrastructure 
Supplementary Planning Document 
will be produced to cover this 
area; work on this has begun and 
consultation is expected in the latter 
part of this year.  It is likely that the 
sites within the town centre will be 
considered on a case by case basis, 
especially in relation to transport 
infrastructure.

6.2  Transport and 
Infrastructure

One of the key elements that will 
influence the development proposals 
for the renaissance of the town 
centre is how any changes impact 
upon the transport needs of the 
town. Currently the town benefits 
from very good access from the 
regional transport network, both 
by road and rail, however its 
accessibility at the local level is more 
challenging, notably the pivotal role 
it plays in the primary distribution of 
through traffic to access local areas.  
The Council’s current local transport 
plan sets out the objectives for 
transport across the Borough:

• To improve the road 
infrastructure, maintenance and 
targeted improvements to the 
road network to improve traffic 
flow

• To improve the integration of 
transport policy and land use 
planning  to create a more 
efficient transport system

• To improve road safety for all 
road users, through cost effective 
solutions, education and training

• To develop cost effective 
transport solutions that are 
sensitive to the varying nature 
of the Borough and improve 
accessibility to key facilities

• To improve the convenience of 
travel that involves using more 
than one mode of transport

• To promote sustainable travel 
choices through various travel 
planning initiatives.

06 POLICY CONSIDERATIONS AND MARKET COMMENTARY

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
AND MARKET 
COMMENTARY

06

41



22

06 POLICY CONSIDERATIONS AND MARKET COMMENTARY

The impact of development in the 
town centre is a critical element 
and a key objective will be to 
ensure that travel patterns are not 
impacted in a way that reduces 
accessibility to the town centre or 
travel through it. An aspiration is 
to increase the attractiveness of 
the town centre to pedestrians, 
cyclists, wheelchair and mobility 
vehicle users while not negatively 
impacting on the accessibility to and 
through the town. There is a need 
to strike a strong balance between 
excellent access to the town, the 
need for travel both north/south 
and east/west through the town, and 
permeability for pedestrians, cyclists 
and other users.  

The Council is currently developing a 
long term transport strategy (LTTS).  
This will take into account the longer 
term development proposals across 
the Borough and the infrastructure 
needs these will generate.  The LTTS 
will be available in draft form in May 
2009.  In tandem with this two traffic 
models have been developed – a 
Borough wide SATURN model and a 
town centre VISSIM model.  It will be 
a requirement to use these models to 
test proposals for the town centre.

There are currently draft proposals 
for infrastructure in and around the 
town centre that will impact upon 
local travel patterns.  Development 
proposals for the town centre should 
be made with an understanding of 
these potential schemes but should 
not rely on them in terms of any 
benefits they may deliver.

6.3  Market Commentaries

General Economic Overview

During a period of relative economic 
stability and high levels of credit 
availability over the past two 
decades, the economy of the UK has 
experienced good levels of growth. 
This situation has led to continued 
growth in consumer spending with 
resultant implications for the growth 
of retailing and leisure.  

This economic position has now 
fundamentally changed due to the 
credit crunch and the resultant 
decline in the economy of the 
UK, and globally, leading to a full 
recession. 

This economic situation has been 
in part driven by unsustainable 
growth in real estate asset values 
(notably housing) and by the impact 
of the considerable bad debts and 
considerable exposure to high 
risk assets held by the financial 
institutions, hedge funds and 
corporate investors that have been 
dependent on continued growth 
in capital values and revenue to 
support high levels of gearing. As 
such factors as house prices rose 
to unsustainable levels, requiring 
relaxation of credit ratios, the level 
of bad debt default increased and 
the extent of the financial exposure 
became clearer, confidence fell 
resulting in revaluation of assets and 
income. The revaluation has led to 
significant falls in land, real estate 
and business profitability and in 
some cases huge corporate losses.      

This position has resulted in a 
considerable restriction in the level 
of credit and finance being made 
available for the commercial sector 
and private households, which in 
turn has led to further decline in 
business and consumer confidence. 
Falling consumer confidence results 
in lower spending patterns which in 
turn negatively impacts on retailing 
and manufacturing which further 
impacts on employment. As this 
situation continues it results in 
continued downward pressure on the 
economy. 

To counter act this negative cycle, 
interest rates have been reduced 
to historically low levels and the 
Government is trying to stimulate 
the credit markets. In the longer 
term such measures should 
increase the disposable incomes of 
households in employment, however 
it will take time for this situation to 
lead to the increase in consumer 
confidence which will stimulate 
the economy through increased 
consumer and business spending.             

42



23

Impact on the Market

With tightening credit conditions and 
increasing levels of unemployment, 
consumer confidence has suffered 
and retail spending has fallen. 
Against this economic backdrop 
retailers are tightening their 
belts, or are going out of business 
altogether, resulting in lowering 
levels of demand for new space and 
increasing vacancies rates. 

While retail spending is declining and 
the demand for shop units falling, 
the supply or potential supply of 
new accommodation across the 
UK and the South East region is 
relatively high. This is a result of the 
development pipeline of projects 
under construction or with secured 
planning consent. There are also a 
number of opportunities that were 
being actively progressed at the 
design and planning stage.  Many of 
the schemes that could be slowed 
down or put on hold have been.  

While it is difficult to predict the 
timing of the bottom of this current 
economic cycle, many commentators 
are of the opinion that we are close 
to this point, with many expecting 
stabilisation and possibly the 
commencement of a slow but steady 
recovery during 2010/11. A number of 
investors and developers are starting 
to make, or at least plan to make, 
preparations for the recovery. 

One impact of the current economic 
crisis is that developers and 
investors are taking a more prudent 
approach to development and 
investment, with the fundamentals 
of new opportunities being more 
closely investigated. This is a 
situation that is unlikely to change 
for a considerable period of time. 

Wokingham Overview

It is the view of the Council, and its 
adviser DTZ, that Wokingham is in a 
strong position to take advantage of 
the economic recovery and attract 
development and investment given 
the strengths of its fundamentals.     

As the market recovers, projects will 
need to achieve the fundamental 
principles essential for successful 
development. Wokingham is in a 
strong position benefitting as it 
does from such key principles as the 
following: 

• Strong catchment demographic

• Limited local supply constraints

• Pro-active and supportive local 
authority with key assets  

• Good local and regional 
accessibility by car and public 
transport

• A thriving, if limited, evening 
economy

• An attractive and historically 
appealing environment 

06 POLICY CONSIDERATIONS AND MARKET COMMENTARY

6.4  Community Safety 

Wokingham borough is the third 
safest place in the country – the 
development / regeneration of 
the town centre will consider its 
contribution to maintaining the low 
levels of crime and the high levels of 
public safety that currently exist. The 
council would welcome developer 
engagement and dialogue with the 
Community Safety Partnership on its 
schemes to ensure current standards 
are maintained and improvements 
can be made wherever possible. 

Current priorities for the Community 
Safety Partnership include:

• Reducing anti-socal behaviour

• Reducing the adverse impacts of 
alcohol

• Reducing the fear of crime / 
raising public confidence

• Reducing serious acquisitive 
crime (burglaries / thefts from / 
of vehicles)

• Reducing serious violent crime

• Tackling persistent offenders

• Reducing Domestic Violence

• Reducing hate crime

Community safety issues for 
Developers to consider should 
include: 

• Impact of new businesses on the 
town centre (especially licensed 
premises)

• Building / Premise security 

• Car park design and security

• Noise

• Surveillance (CCTV)

43



24

The spatial framework diagram has 
been prepared to guide bidders 
towards a form of inclusive design 
development which will contribute 
to the town centre as a whole, relate 
well to the surrounding context and 
improve pedestrian and public space 
connectivity. This builds upon the 
existing Wokingham Town Centre 
Development Guide, which is a draft 
Supplementary Planning Document.

7.1  Spatial Analysis

The principal street pattern of the 
town centre has remained largely 
the same for over the last century 
characterised by three main axes, 
Peach Street, Denmark Street and 
Broad Street, converging on the 
Market Place; and with the Railway 
Station set back. 

The historical identity of the town 
centre has been reinforced by 
residential development adjoining 
the town throughout the 20th 
century and the absence (on the 
whole) of large scale commercial and 
retail developments out of scale with 
the historic fabric and street pattern. 
This poses both an opportunity, in 
terms of attractive character and 
distinctiveness, and a challenge 
regarding how to allow the town to 
grow in a commercially viable and 
competitive fashion.

The overall framework should build 
on Wokingham’s unique assets, in 
particular:

• Well conserved historic built 
fabric which is visually attractive 
and is well related to the town’s 
heritage and culture.

• A healthy and stable place with a 
discerning population who value 
choice, quality and leisure time.

• Existing open space with mature 
trees - beauty, space and outdoor 
activity can all contribute to a 
unique sense of well being in the 
town.

SPATIAL 
FRAMEWORK07

07 SPATIAL FRAMEWORK

• A compact town centre – allowing 
greater social interaction and a 
more pedestrian-oriented centre.

• Partnership and Collaboration  
- the potential for united 
commitment to the town’s 
improvement through strong local 
leadership, public involvement 
and a positive business culture.

The town can support a variety 
of new uses including offices, 
residential, hotels, leisure, retail 
and arts & culture but the real 
value derives from the ability to 
enhance and promote the public 
space, attractive streets, historic 
environment, special events and 
festivals and the involvement of 
the people who live and work in the 
town.

At a wider level, the town centre 
traffic system detracts from 
Wokingham’s inherent attractive 
qualities by creating two large loops 
within which there are dead-ends 
and cul-de-sacs. The objective should 
be to repair this through the creation 
of well connected streets and spaces 
which encourage different movement 
choices and prioritise pedestrians 
over vehicles. This also requires a 
rethink over parking arrangements 
through a new parking strategy for 
the town.

44



25

Figure 2 Historic Map (1899)

07 SPATIAL FRAMEWORK

T
h

is
 m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

an
ce

 S
u

rv
ey

 M
at

er
ia

l w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

an
ce

 S
u

rv
ey

 o
n

 
b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
h

e 
C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
 ©

 C
ro

w
n

 C
o

py
ri

g
h

t.
  U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 in

fr
in

g
es

 C
ro

w
n

 
C

o
py

ri
g

h
t 

an
d

 m
ay

 le
ad

 t
o

 p
ro

se
cu

ti
o

n
 o

r 
ci

vi
l p

ro
ce

ed
in

g
s.

  W
o

ki
n

g
h

am
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l L
ic

en
se

 
N

o.
 1

0
0

0
19

5
9

2
 2

0
0

8
.  

Fo
r 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
o

n
ly

.  
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
er

 c
o

p
ie

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

45



2�

Figure 3 illustrates the key strengths 
and weaknesses of the town centre, 
which can be summarised as:

Weaknesses

• Poor quality sense of arrival at 
the railway station or on key 
roads with indistinct gateways 
and a lack of directions to lead 
people into the town

• Some recent developments and 
permissions which detract from 
the character of the town

• Lack of high quality public realm 
and car domination on some 
streets

• Absence of high quality facilities 
for children, youth, families, 
the elderly and people with 
disabilities.

• Poor use and/or fragmentation 
of open space and recreational 
areas

• Poor, or unclear, permeability for 
pedestrian and cyclist movement

• Lack of non-food anchor retail 
space and retail units of an 
attractive size

• Limited employment development

Strengths

• Attractive historic architecture 
and townscape, including a high 
number of listed buildings and 
Conservation Areas, creating a 
real sense of heritage to the town 
and it’s past.

• Strong market town image 
focussed on Market Place and the 
Town Hall 

• Good offer of restaurants, 
cafes and pubs including mix of 
independents and popular chains

• High quality and popular food 
stores 

• Railway Station within easy 
walking distance and with good 
connections to Reading, London 
and Gatwick airport

• A variety of community and 
leisure uses including modern 
library, swimming pool and gym

• High quality residential 
neighbourhoods within easy 
walking and cycling distance of 
the town centre

• Large enhancement and 
development opportunities 
controlled by the Borough Council

07 SPATIAL FRAMEWORK

46



27

Figure 3 Strengths and Weaknesses

07 SPATIAL FRAMEWORK

T
h

is
 m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

an
ce

 S
u

rv
ey

 M
at

er
ia

l w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

an
ce

 S
u

rv
ey

 o
n

 
b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
h

e 
C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
 ©

 C
ro

w
n

 C
o

py
ri

g
h

t.
  U

n
au

th
o

ri
se

d
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 in

fr
in

g
es

 C
ro

w
n

 
C

o
py

ri
g

h
t 

an
d

 m
ay

 le
ad

 t
o

 p
ro

se
cu

ti
o

n
 o

r 
ci

vi
l p

ro
ce

ed
in

g
s.

  W
o

ki
n

g
h

am
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l L
ic

en
se

 
N

o.
 1

0
0

0
19

5
9

2
 2

0
0

8
.  

Fo
r 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
o

n
ly

.  
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
er

 c
o

p
ie

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

47



28

7.2  Towards a Spatial 
Framework

In the context of establishing the 
key renaissance principles and the 
spatial analysis undertaken by DTZ 
and David Lock Associates (DLA), 
workshops have been held with 
key Borough Council Officers and 
Members, and with the Town Centre 
Forum and Steering Group, and 
reference has been made to the 
broad principles set out in the draft 
Town Centre Development Guide. 
This analysis has guided the setting 
of the key renaissance principles 
and the preparation of an Indicative 
Spatial Framework.  Please note, this 
document has no planning status 
at the current time but it provides 
a steer to developers bidding in this 
Competitive Dialogue process on key 
issues to take into account. 

• An extended street pattern, 
with new connections to 
improve access and movement 
opportunities, and to open 
up opportunities for new 
development frontage

• Street enhancement in Denmark 
Street, Broad Street and Peach 
Street to redress the balance 
between pedestrians and vehicles

• Opportunities for high quality, 
multi-functional urban open 
space to host a variety of formal 
and informal outdoor activities 
and to provide an attractive 
setting for new development

• Opportunities for a variety of 
town centre land uses to enhance 
the vibrancy and appeal of the 
centre

• Opportunities for retail anchor 
stores to reinforce the retail 
circuit based on Denmark Street 

• Improved points of arrival to 
the town centre, giving clear 
orientation to visitors

• Improved parking provision, 
closely related to arrival points, 
and giving clear and easy onward 
access to the heart of the town 
centre for pedestrians

• Changes to junctions at 
Wellington Road/Station Road, 
Denmark Street/Wellington 
Road and around the Town 
Hall to improve cycling access, 
pedestrian, and other users 
amenity and safety and reduce 
the amount of town centre land 
given over to highway space

• A new transport interchange and 
station facility, and associated 
access, to improve the appeal of 
public transport

In due course Wokingham Borough 
Council may take forward these 
ideas to develop a Supplementary 
Planning Document providing more 
detail and site briefs.

The compact nature of the town 
centre means that the vast majority 
of the improvements proposed 
by the Framework can be realised 
through the development of the 
key sites at Peach Place, Shute End, 
Elms Field and The Paddocks. In 
order to maximise the opportunity 
presented by these sites, the redline 
boundaries have been extended to 
take in important areas of existing 
public space which can be improved 
in association with new development.

07 SPATIAL FRAMEWORK

48



29

8.1  Peach Street/Rose 
Street

This site is currently in multi 
ownership. 

Located at the heart of the town 
centre this site is in a prime position 
to provide high quality and flexible 
space for new retailing, both 
multinational retailers and specialist 

niche operators. It also provides 
the opportunity to deliver high 
quality living at the heart of the 
town and/or the creation of a small 
business community serving local or 
regional needs and create a further 
commercial anchor for the town.  

Redevelopment of this key site may 
provide the opportunity for the 
inclusion of a new medium sized 
anchor or the relocation/expansion 

of the existing Marks & Spencer, 
which will enhance the overall retail 
offer of the town.  Redevelopment 
of the site should also improve the 
circulation patterns of the centre. 

Development of this key site should 
be seen as a truly mixed use 
environment, bringing high quality 
retail, catering, living, and possibly 
commercial employment to the heart 
of the town.

08 DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK FOR THE SITES

DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
FOR THE SITES08

Future Redline Site

Identified Redline Sites

elms Field

Shute end

Peach Street/ 
rose street

Paddock 
car Park

Figure 5 Development Sites

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey Material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on 
behalf of the Controller of HMSO © Crown Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Wokingham Borough Council License 
No. 100019592 2008.  For reference purposes only.  No further copies may be made.49



30

It is essential that the development 
of this site delivers the following 
Framework objectives:

• account should be made in the 
design for the existing listed 
buildings and access to the 
Methodist Church Centre, which is 
an important community facility

• the development should present 
its primary frontage and accesses 
to the surrounding streets in 
order to concentrate a maximum 
amount of activity in the public 
realm

• parking should be designed as 
integral to the development, and 
should not impair the pedestrian 
experience 

Physical constraints exist, not least 
the segregation of the site from the 
town hall side of the Market Place 
by the road system of Peach Street 

Peach Street

08 DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK FOR THE SITES

and Broad Street. Overcoming this 
segregation is a primary objective to 
enable better pedestrian flows and 
create a safer and more attractive 
environment. 

Importantly the current site provides 
public car parking that serves the 
town centre. This provision needs 
to be maintained, improved, and if 
deemed necessary increased. The 
impact, and possible solutions, of 
new net additional retail space on 
the provision and location of car 
parking will need to be investigated 
by bidders, and the quality of the 
parking environment should be 
enhanced.   

This site has been the subject of 
planning applications for mixed use 
development and details of those 
applications can be found on the 
Council website.

50



31

8.2  Elms Field and the 
Paddock Car Park

These sites are in the ownership of 
Wokingham Borough Council

An important gateway to the town, 
the Elms Field and Paddocks site 
offers the opportunity to create 
a vibrant mixed-use environment 
providing opportunities for 
socialising, active leisure, relaxation, 
business, limited retailing, and 
possibly the introduction of high 
quality living, all focused around 
high quality public realm and 
useable open spaces. The Council is 
promoting the opportunity for Elms 
Field and the Paddocks to become 
the leisure and possible business 
heart of the town to complement the 
more retail dominated heart centred 
around the Town Hall square and 
Peach Street. 

Through the provision of a range 
of high quality catering uses such 
as cafes, restaurants, bars, and the 
introduction of more active leisure 
opportunities and passive recreation, 
Elms Field and the Paddocks 
can become the focal point for 
socialising, leisure, and community 
activity within the town centre. The 
attractions of Elms Field and the 
Paddocks will cater for the lifestyles 
of the people of Wokingham, and 
attract visitors from further afield.     

It is important to recognise that the 
town has several existing leisure 
and recreation facilities, including: 
First Bowl, the nightclub and the 
swimming pool that sit at the end of 
Denmark Street and on the edge of 
the Elm’s field site. It is intended that 
the development of the Elms field 
and Paddocks area can significantly 
improve the link to these attractions 
and integrate them more 
successfully in to the town centre.  

The opportunity exists to create 
an attractive urban park and multi-
functional open space that provides 
a sustainable and inspiring focal 
point for the town that could become 
the centre for active leisure and 
relaxing recreation. The quality 
of the space and its function as 
a place for active leisure and 
recreation should be significantly 
improved. Proposals should clearly 
demonstrate the ability of the space 
to accommodate a range of events 
as well as permanent features 
including inspiring children’s play 
facilities.

As the focal point for the town 
and borough, Elms Field and the 
Paddocks area should incorporate 
some community uses, including 
a meeting place for all ages and 
Council sponsored leisure facilities 
to cater for all residents. It is to be 
noted however that many such non-
commercially operated community 
uses can be provided for in multi-
use facilities, optimising the use of 
buildings.     

Any development at Elms Field and 
the Paddocks must be design driven 
and sensitive to the heritage of the 
town and contribute positively to 
the character of the town centre 
Conservation Area.    

Furthermore, the current site 
provides public car parking that 
serves the town centre. This 
provision needs to be maintained, 
and if possible increased, and the 
quality of the parking environment 
should be enhanced.   

Elms Field

08 DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK FOR THE SITES

51



32

8.3  Shute End

This site is in the ownership of 
Wokingham Borough Council

The Council is in the early stage 
of strategically assessing its 
operational requirements and 
occupational strategy across the 
borough. This assessment may offer 
the opportunity for the Council to 
rationalise its occupation of the 
Shute End Civic Office and bring 
forward some or all the site for 
future redevelopment. At this time 
the Council has not completed 
its assessment of its future 
occupational requirements. Should 
the Council  offer part or all of the 
site for development it would be 
seeking proposals that promote the 
site for predominantly employment 
and/or hotel and conference uses 
and some community functions. 

The site is strategically located 
close to the major public transport, 
Wokingham rail station, adjacent 
to Elms Field which will be the 
social hub of the town, and within 
minutes of the retail heart of the 
town centre.  Given its strategic 
location and opportunity to 
provide business and community 
facilities  the Shute End site is a 
gateway location which can play an 
important part in strengthening and 
diversifying the town’s economy. As 
an important gateway to the town, 
the redevelopment of the site should 
also look to significantly improve 
the access to and around the town 
centre, and notably provides the 
opportunity to enhance accessibility  
to Elms Field and the Paddocks.

Shute End

08 DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK FOR THE SITES

52



33Shute End

9.1  Best consideration/
financial receipts/profits

Viable Development

It is expected that the project will be 
commercially viable without recourse 
to public sector subsidy, both in its 
entirety and for each phase, subject 
to phase cross-subsidy requirements 
if required. The project is therefore 
expected to be self-funding, and the 
Development Partner will take full 
responsibility for the securing and 
funding of project finance unless 
otherwise agreed by the Council, at 
its absolute discretion.   

Council Receipts 

While the Council is not primarily 
focused on securing significant 
capital receipts from the project, 
it is seeking to secure additional 
long term revenue in excess of that 
currently derived from current car 
parks. Revenue may be delivered 
from a number of sources including: 

• Geared ground rents derived from 
the sale of long leasehold(s) to 
the Development Partner or third 
party investors;

• Increased car parking income 
achieved by increasing the 
number of public spaces or 
more efficient management of 
enforcement; 

• Returns received from holding 
land and assets in joint venture 
for long term investment and 
management. 

09 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Council is not averse to the 
receipt of capital income, in addition 
to the securing of long term revenue 
streams, and is also keen to explore 
such methods as: 

• Profit sharing arrangements;

• Overage returns through the 
sharing of net development 
profit after the payment of an 
acceptable developer’s priority 
return.

It is the Council’s current expectation 
that it will seek to retain the freehold 
of all areas of land currently in its 
ownership, and for all land acquired 
through private negotiation or 
compulsory purchase. The Council’s 
intention is to provide long 
leasehold interests to the successful 
Development Partner which may be 
subject to geared ground rents for 
areas providing for non-residential 
accommodation. The only exception 
to this position may be the sale 
or transfer of freehold land to 
purchasers of residential property or 
to the Development Partner.   

At the Council’s discretion, the 
Council may decide to reinvest 
some or all receipts received from 
development to the provision of 
community facilities or for the 
long term management of public 
realm, public highways and public 
open spaces associated with the 
completed scheme.  

Grants / Funding

As noted above, ultimately, the 
scheme should be self-funding.  If 
there is a funding gap then it is the 
bidders’ responsibility to identify it 
and justify to the Council the need 
for grant funding.  Where justified, 
the Council will work with the bidders 
to identify possible grant funding 
sources providing that it has been 
demonstrated by way of the viability 
appraisals the provision of such 
funding does not breach state aid 
rules.

9.2  Council Resource 
Management and Costs

All costs properly and reasonably 
incurred by the Council in relation to 
the procurement of a Development 
Partner and for the continued 
operation of its project management 
function through the delivery of the 
Town Centre renaissance are to be 
funded by the Development Partner, 
including any externally appointed 
advisers and consultants.

9.3  Long Term Property 
and Facilities Management 

The Council is not seeking to take 
management and cost responsibility 
for future management and 
maintenance of the completed 
scheme except for areas set aside 
for public realm, public highways and 
access routes, and public open space.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS09

53



34

10 THE DISCLAIMER

THE DISCLAIMER10
10.1  Confidentiality Clause 

Please note that this document may 
contain confidential information 
for the use of the bidder and must 
be used in compliance with the 
Confidentiality Agreement signed by 
the bidder and Wokingham Borough 
Council (“the Council”).

10.2  Misrepresentation 
Clause 

DTZ and the Council give notice that:  

i) these particulars are a general 
outline, for guidance of the 
prospective purchasers, and do 
not constitute the whole or any 
part of an offer or contract;

ii) neither DTZ nor the Council 
can guarantee the accuracy of 
any description, dimensions, 
references to condition, 
necessary permissions for use 
and occupation and other details 
contained herein and prospective 
purchasers or tenants must not 
rely on them as statements of 
fact or representations and must 
satisfy themselves as to their 
accuracy;

iii) rents quoted in these particulars 
may be subject to VAT addition; 

iv) neither DTZ nor the Council 
will be liable, in negligence or 
otherwise, for any loss, damage 
or inconvenience arising from the 
use of these particulars;

v) the reference to any plant, 
machinery, equipment, devices, 
fixtures, or fittings at the 
property shall not constitute a 
representation (unless otherwise 
stated) as to its state or condition 
or that it is capable of fulfilling 
its intended function. Prospective 
purchasers/tenants should satisfy 
themselves as to the fitness of 
such items for their requirements; 
and

vi) no employee of DTZ (and its 
subsidiaries) or the Council, 
except where the bidder has 
been notified to the contrary, has 
any authority to make or give 
any representation or warranty 
to enter into any contract 
whatsoever in relation to this 
project.

54



35

55



>> www.wokingham.gov.uk>> www.wokingham.gov.uk

Wokingham Borough Council
Civic Offices
Shute End

Wokingham
Berkshire
RG40 1BN

Tel: (0118) 974 6000
Fax: (0118) 978 9078

Minicom: (0118) 974 6991
Email: wokinghambc@wokingham.gov.uk

www.wokingham.gov.uk

Graphic Design by: David Lock Associates

56



EXTRACT FROM REGEN CO MICROSITE –  

http://www.regenerationcompany.co.uk/delivery/financial-viability  

Delivering Viable Regeneration 

In order to make sure Wokingham's regeneration is a success, the Council has taken the step in 

coming forward as both developer and main investor in the scheme.  

It's an innovative approach which has seen the Council win the 2016 Planning and Placemaking 

Award for Making Development Viable. The award recognised the investment being made by the 

Council into the local community and delivering the facilities they need.  

Acting as developer means the Council will own the completed assets and can either sell them off to 

raise funds or retain them to secure an ongoing rental income. It can also take a combined approach 

with some of the assets, such as residential properties, sold off to raise money and others retained 

to secure income for the longer term.       

Benefits of Approach  

The Council acting as regeneration developer brings several benefits -  

 Control over development, such as density of build, design and materials used 

 Control over delivery and the phasing of construction within the town  

 Control over the types of businesses attracted to the town centre to ensure the right mix 

between national, independent and niche  

 Higher levels of investment in non-profit and community elements, such as the park and 

play area, than would be seen from a private developer 

 Low public sector interest rates on borrowings, allowing more to be delivered for every 

pound invested  

Objectives and Risk Management  

The Council has also been careful in setting financial objectives for the regeneration to minimise 

risks and maximise benefits including:  

 It must be financially viable and deliverable with a minimum of 5% return on cost  

 It must be financially self-supporting as a commercial investment and can be delivered 

without relying on subsidies from local tax-payers  

 It must generate a return for the Council - either through an ongoing rental income, a one 

off capital sale approach or a combination of the two approaches  

 Pre-let agreements will be signed to ensure sufficient income is 'guaranteed' in advance to 

allow the Council to proceed with confidence  

57

http://www.regenerationcompany.co.uk/delivery/financial-viability


Development Appraisals  

Although made up of individual phases (Carnival Pool, Peach Place and Elms Field) viability is 

assessed across the combined Regeneration projects. This allows the Council to deliver the above 

benefits, such as creation of non-profit and community elements like the improved leisure facilities 

at Carnival, in the right locations when, if delivered as stand-alone they simply would not be 

financially viable.  

The following figures (rounded) are taken from the project Development Appraisals which are based 

upon new present costs / vales at Spring 2016 and assume all assets will be sold. We continue to 

review these appraisals and take into account cost changes such as inflation, detailed design and 

materials, and the procurement process. Values will also be subject to change to reflect letting 

agreements with actual tenants and values achieved when the residential is sold on the open 

market.  

Phase  Total Value Total Cost Surplus 

Peach Place Portfolio (Refurb)  £11m £11m £0m 

Peach Place Redevelopment  £24m £23m £1m 

Carnival Pool (Phase 1 & 2)  £40m £40m £0m 

Elms Field  £79m £64m £15m 

Summary across schemes  £154m £138m £16m 

 

58



    WOKINGHAM TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION 

 

£138 M  

TOTAL COSTS 

£76 M  

RESIDENTIAL 

SALES RECEIPTS 

£62 M  

REMAINING 

DEBT 

INVESTMENT IN OUR COMMUNITY 

£4 M  

ANNUAL RENTAL 

INCOME 

6.5% ANNUAL 

RETURN ON 

INVESTMENT  

Compared to LESS THAN 1%  

rate of return received on 

money invested by council  

COSTS INCLUDE 

Commercial assets 

owned by Council 

and 5enera6n5 

£7 M TOWARDS LOCAL 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

(ROADS, SCHOOLS ETC) 

£16 M  

PARTNER INVESTMENT 

(NON-COUNCIL COST)  

DELIVERY OF REGENERATED 

TOWN AND IMPROVED 

FACILITIES FOR RESIDENTS   

A GREAT INVESTMENT IN OUR LOCAL COMMUNITY.  

NET INCOME GENERATOR  

(PAY OFF DEBT AND FUND SERVICES ACROSS BOROUGH) 

 

9,000 M
2
 NEW 

COMMERCIAL FLOORSPACE 

SHOPS & BUSINESS 

Which offers  

BETTER VARIETY AND MIX 

OF SHOPS FOR 

WOKINGHAM RESIDENTS  

FLEXIBLE SPACES DESIGNED 

TO ADAPT TO CHANGING 

‘FACE’ OF HIGH STREET 

AND RETAILER DEMAND 

SIZES TO SUPPORT SMALL 

INDEPENDENTS TO LARGER 

BRAND NAMES  

 

SPORTS, LEISURE AND COMMUNITY  

TOWN PARK 

66%  

OPEN SPACE 

RETAINED 

 

217 NEW HOMES 

RESIDENTIAL 

With new residents 5enera6n5  

£4 M ADDITIONAL SPEND 

INTO THE LOCAL ECONOMY  

 

350 + NEW  

CONSTRUCTION JOBS 

JOBS  

550 + NEW  

PERMANENT JOBS 

EVENTS & 

COMMUNITY 

SPORTS 

CENTRE 

BIGGER PLAY 

AREA 

PLANTING & 

SEATING 

SERVICED  

EVENTS AREA 

BIGGER 

MARKETS 

NEW SPACES 

FOR MORE 

EVENTS 

PERFORMANCE 

SPACE IN NEW 

HALL  

CARNIVALS & 

FAYRES 

4 COURT 

SPORTS HALL 

BIGGER GYM 

STUDIO 

SPACES 

REFURBISHED 

POOL 

LEISURE 

3 SCREEN 

CINEMA 

95 BED  

HOTEL 

BOWLING 

ALLEY 

CAFES & 

RESTAURANTS 

PUBLIC 

SPACES  

2 PEDESTRIAN 

SQUARES 

RETAIL 

CIRCUITS 

IMPROVED 

LINKS 

INTEGRATE 

TO TOWN 

ACCESS & 

TRANSPORT 

837 PUBLIC 

PARKING 

SPACES 

152 PUBLIC 

CYCLE SPACES 

NEW LINK 

ROAD 

PEDESTRIAN 

CROSSINGS CREATION OF NEW 

APPRENTICESHIPS 

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Protective Marking:  OFFICIAL 

ITEM NO:  
 

TITLE Review of Procurement – Impact of New 
Procurement Regulations 

FOR REVIEW BY Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – 21/11/16 

DIRECTOR Graham Ebers 
LEAD MEMBER Pauline Jorgensen 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
The Government’s new Public Contracts Regulations 2015 came into force from 26 
February 2015, in response to substantial revisions in the EU Directive (see background 
below for key changes and impact). 
 
Corporate Procurement and Shared Legal Services devoted significant resources and 
effort in reviewing and interpreting the detail of the new legislation to determine how it 
would be implemented in WBC’s own Procurement and Contracts Regulations.  
 
The need to change the WBC Procurement and Contracts Regulations for the new 
legislation was also a good opportunity to completely reconstitute the then WBC 
Regulations from an unwieldy, complex and non-user facing document to a much clearer 
and more effective set of Rules and Procedures that better facilitate user understanding 
and effective adoption. 
 
The resultant new Procurement & Contracts Rules and Procedures (PCRP) – now 
Chapter 13 of the Constitution - was approved by the Constitutional Review Working 
Group and subsequently by full Council in November 2015. As well as a constitutional 
document, it also acts as a comprehensive and practical set of operating instructions to 
officers, in line with the requirements of the new legislation. The changes aim to spread 
best practice and improve compliance across the Council. 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 

Strategic Benefits 
The new Procurement & Contracts Rules & Procedures allow  the Council to: 

 Increase market testing for supplier spend as part of good management practice 

 Improve value for money in our procurement and contracts / generate savings 

 Reduce risk of non-compliance to procurement legislation, which could result in 
legal challenges from tenderers and suppliers and/or significant fines from 
legislative authorities. 

 Increase transparency 

Operational Benefits 
Through a dedicated training programme launched in the spring of 2016, and with the 
ongoing drive by the corporate Procurement team, the PCRP will: 

 Give officers a better understanding of risks and improve commercial awareness 

 Raise staff skill levels, widen adoption and extend good practice in a decentralised 
procurement structure 

 Direct staff to seek earlier advice and help for higher risk contracts or situations 

 Provide the Council with greater central visibility of key procurement and contract 
activity  to allow proactive interventions and more effective management 

 Improve accountability through clearer processes and approval levels 

61

Agenda Item 24.



Protective Marking:  OFFICIAL 

BACKGROUND 
  
1. Legislation Change 
 
The long-awaited Public Contracts Regulations 2015 legislation is the UK Government’s 
response to substantial revisions in the EU Directive. It not only enacts the requirements 
of the EU Directive into UK law but also gives effects to the Government’s own policy on 
economic growth and development through public procurement activity. The key changes 
to legislation include: 

 Part B exempt services brought within the Regulations (light touch regime) 

 Increased support for involvement of SMEs 

 Below-threshold obligations, particularly in regard of advertising 

 Changes to selection & award criteria 

 Shortened timescales 

 Changes to procedure 

 

With the UK Referendum vote on 23 June 2016 in favour of ‘Brexit’, it has been 

speculated in some quarters that the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 could be radically 

amended once the UK leaves the EU. In practice, it is unlikely that the legislation will be 

changed for a number of years, not least because it will be low on the Government’s 

priorities post-Brexit, so it should be assumed that all public bodies will have to continue 

to work within this framework for the foreseeable future. 

 

2. The current WBC Procurement and Contracts Regulations 
 
Prior to the approval of the new WBC Procurement & Contracts Rules and Procedures 
(PCRP), the previous Procurement and Contracts Regulations were contained in Chapter 
12.2 of the Constitution as a 122 page tome that had been added to and grown over time. 
It was designed to be detailed, prescriptive and legalistic in approach and was structured 
in an encyclopaedic style, written by procurement professionals for procurement 
professionals.  
 
However, in trying to be so detailed and prescriptive, it lost its effectiveness as a source of 
guidance for non-expert users as the structure was difficult to navigate, the guiding 
principles were obscured and rules were not easily distinguishable from processes. In a 
decentralised procurement organisation, the inherent complexity and non-user focused 
nature of the document increased the risk of non-compliance as staff did not easily 
understand it and may not have referred to it. 
 

 

THE NEW WBC PROCUREMENT & CONTRACT RULES & PROCEDURES 
 
The new PCRP has therefore been completely redrafted to incorporate the latest 
legislation and best practice but to make it into a more effective working document for 
officers to follow in their routine procurement activity. Not only is it intended to form part of 
the Council’s constitution; it is a practical operating manual to instruct officers of the 
Council’s requirements around procurement and contracts, as well as the procedure to 
follow in any scenario.  
 

62



Protective Marking:  OFFICIAL 

The title of the document itself has been changed to clearly state that it contains rules and 
procedures for WBC and to distinguish it from the Public Contract Regulations 2015, 
which is the legislation that underpins it. It has also been split from the Finance 
Regulations, as a distinct chapter (13) in the Constitution, to enhance the chance of it 
being read and used. Other Authorities, like RBWM, have this separation. 
 
The PCRP has been slimmed down to a 11-page core Rules & Procedures document, 
which forms the Constitutional document. This is driven by clear principles and an 
overarching framework but various links to a glossary, appendices, process flow charts, 
guidance notes and other sources of information outside of the document turns it into a 
practical operating manual for users. These provide operational information in the 
practical application of the rules and procedures. The PCRP and all the links are held on 
the Council’s Grapevine intranet pages as the means of offering easy user access. 
 
The core document contains 4 key sections: 

1. Purpose and Significance – this specifies what the PCRP is and why it is 
important to the Council.  

2. General Principles – clearly sets out what the rules and procedures applies to, 
who it applies to in terms of responsibility and compliance and addresses 
measures to avoid conflicts of interest. 

3. The Procurement and Contract Rules – a comprehensive but concise summary 
of the rules, set out in chronological order for ease of use, and details the: 

i. pre-procurement approvals needed before procurement commences 
ii. required procurement procedure to use in any scenario 
iii. contracting requirements to engage with suppliers, and  
iv. contract management requirements during the life of the contract 

4. Overview of Procurement Process Selection – provides a systematic route-
finder for users to identify which procurement process to follow dependent on the 
nature and size of their procurement, with links within the document to practical 
guidance notes, flowcharts and useful information to aid users apply the process. 

 
Whilst the PCRP aims to provide clarity on the rules and procedures for any procurement, 
there will be situations where users need more specific guidance. One consistent theme 
of the PCRP is therefore the call for users to engage with the Procurement and Legal 
teams where in doubt and in specified situations for advice. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION AND ROLL-OUT OF NEW PCRP 
 
Following approval by Council, a training programme was designed and developed to 
support the implementation and roll-out of the new PCRP. This was launched in the spring 
of 2016 and consisted of: 

 A number of eLearning modules on different aspects of procurement and contract 
management. The first of these is live and is an introductory course for all staff, 
covering the basics of procurement within the Council, and is intended to become 
mandatory training for all new starters. 

 Classroom training courses tailored for different parts of the organisation – social 
care commissioning teams and a separate course for the rest of the Council. So 
far, 4 courses have been run for 37 people with good feedback from attendees. An 
active “wait list” is held to ensure an ongoing pipeline of training is delivered. 

63



Protective Marking:  OFFICIAL 

 Ongoing Procurement Business Partner support to Service areas for specific 
procurement activity to help staff learn on the job and to spread learning and best 
practice across the Council. 

 

 

IMPACT OF THE NEW PROCUREMENT & CONTRACT RULES & PROCEDURES 
 

 Part B exempt services replaced by ‘light touch regime’ for certain services  

Exemptions from Procurement Regulations for what were classified as Part B services 
(such as the commissioning of health and social care contracts) are no longer 
available and are replaced by the new ‘light touch’ regime. For social care 
procurements with contract value above £589,000 this means that a formal but ‘light 
touch’ tender process is required for all opportunities, which does give some flexibility 
as to the process to be used in each case so long as it can be demonstrated to be 
open, fair and transparent. Even for contracts under the OJEU threshold, the PCRP 
still requires best practice to be followed but without the rigid advertising and timescale 
requirements of the light touch regime. 
 
The impact for WBC is that the level of tendering activity and market testing for social 
care contracts has increased within the Strategic Commissioning areas for Adult 
Social Care and Children’s Services with significant support from Corporate 
Procurement. Whilst this has placed real resource pressure on the teams, it has 
exposed more spend in these areas to competition. A desired outcome is that for 
every procurement that has taken place, procurement savings have been achieved. 

 

 Increased support for involvement of SMEs 

Amongst a raft of measures to give SMEs greater access to public tender 
opportunities, Contracting Authorities are ‘encouraged’ to break contracts into lots, the 
advertisement of any contract opportunity is now specified and the process options 
defined. It is now a statutory requirement to publish opportunities valued at over £25k 
on Contracts Finder as well as traditional channels. Likewise, there is a ban on using a 
separate PQQ stage to limit the number of tenderers, based on certain criteria, to 
narrow the field for processes below specific thresholds. This effectively makes the 
Open Procedure the default for sub OJEU procurements. 

The advertising impact is not significant, but the prohibition on using a PQQ process 
for below threshold tenders means that every tender received must be evaluated and 
processed in full. This can be time-consuming and inefficient where high numbers of 
tenders are received for particular opportunities. 

 

 Documentation 

The new regulations require that all documents used in the procurement process are 
available at the same time as the OJEU notice is issued and, depending on the 
process, cannot be materially amended. The impact is that officers now have to be 
much more organised and better prepared in their procurement planning to have fully 
considered, scoped out and fully specified tender documents in advance.  
 

 Selection and award 

Public bodies can now exclude bidders during the procurement process on a wider set 
of grounds, including poor historic performance. These new rights provide flexibility to 

64



Protective Marking:  OFFICIAL 

exclude a supplier from tender opportunities for a number of reasons, which were not 
possible previously, and reduce the risk of having to award contracts to suppliers who 
perform well at evaluation but where evidence of delivery is to the contrary. It also 
includes clarification of the treatment of abnormally low tenders, which we now have a 
duty to investigate, and allows us to exclude the supplier if appropriate. 

 

 

RISKS OF NON-COMPLIANCE 

 Increasingly litigious environment leading to greater legal challenges from tenderers/ 
suppliers over application of process (rather than decisions) – unlimited damages. 

 Maximum fine for non-compliance to Public Contract Regulations – 10% gross annual 
turnover. 

 Other possible sanctions during the procurement/contract lifecycle: 
o Immediate suspension of contract making 
o Overturning of contract award decisions 
o Enforced shortening or termination of contracts 

 

 

Contact: Kien Lac Service: Head of Commercial Services   

Telephone No: 6040 Email: kien.lac@wokingham.gov.uk   

Date: 21 November 2016 Version No. 1.0 

 

65



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

TITLE Highways and Transport Update and Improvements 
to Work and Scheme Programmes 

  
FOR CONSIDERATION BY Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 21 

November 2016 
  
WARD None specific 
  
DIRECTOR Josie Wragg Interim Director of Environment 
  
LEAD MEMBER Malcolm Richards, Executive Member for Highways 

and Transport 
  
 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 
Improved delivery and control of highways maintenance activities and schemes across 
the borough. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Members note the improvements made to date, and further improvements proposed, 
detailed within the report. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
The report provides a general update on highways maintenance activities and highway 
schemes provided within the Wokingham Borough Council, WSP Parsons Brinkerhoff 
and Balfour Beatty Living Places Highways Alliance, and provides information regarding 
development of future work programmes. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67

Agenda Item 25.



 
 

Background 
 
The Highways and Transport Service are committed keeping the Community and 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee up to speed on improvements and 
developments within the service. On the 20 June 2016 an update was provided to the 
committee by the newly appointed Head of Highways and Transport on such matters. 
The committee welcomed these improvements and requested an update later in 2016, 
including an update relating to the following specific issues:  

1. The criteria to determine when works are carried out and the emerging 
government guidelines. 

2. A move towards more integrated working within the Highways and Transport 
Service and how the 21st Century Council would impact service delivery. 

3. Initiatives to ensure all defects marked up were repaired, and how improvements 
could be made to the overall quality of highway maintenance works. 

4. Improvements to forward planning of highway maintenance works and projects. 
 
General Update 
 
A review of the Highways and Transport Service, specifically in relation to delivery 
models and term contracts has taken place. The service is currently delivered partly in 
house and partly (the majority) through a number of term contracts. The main term 
contracts are held by Balfour Beatty Living Places (highway term maintenance & 
structures) and WSP Parsons Brinkerhoff (professional services). The service spends 
around £4M of revenue a year on maintenance works, £1.5M on professional services 
and generates around £2M of income per annum. Capital expenditure on schemes is 
approximately £10M/annum and this would be expected to be delivered by Balfour 
Beatty Living Places. Additionally the service is also looking to deliver the major 
infrastructure works to support the SDL delivery to 2021. This is likely to be in the form 
of a design and build major contract and provisional works for programing and delivery 
options are underway. The review’s main purpose was to identify the most effective way 
to deliver the service in line with the requirements of the borough going forward. 
 
It has been agreed that the existing term contracts for WSP|PB Professional Services 
and BBLP Highways Term Maintenance and Structures are to be extended for a one 
year term from April 2018 to March 2019, including a commitment from the Council, 
WSP|PB and BBLP, via a signed Memorandum of Understanding dated September 
2016, to re-energise the Highways Alliance which will provide the flexibility the Council 
desires, and required timescales to deliver the 21st Century Council initiative, and move 
towards clienting more efficient outcomes focussed contracts from April 2019. The 
Highways Alliance members will re-energise partnership working for this period prior to 
new contracts being procured, promoting innovation, trialling new ways of working, 
delivering service improvement and efficiencies aligned with the 21st Century Council 
operating model. 
 
Improvements in processes, response times and customer services remain a Council 
priority, and the customer experience is centric to the 21st Century Council initiative. As 
an interim measure the Council’s corporate complaints team have been rolling out 
customer service improvements with all services, including Highways and Transport. 
However it is recognised further improvements are required across the Highways 
Alliance, and we will continue working with our partners WSPPB and BBLP to improve 
the customer experience and improve our communication. 
 

68



 
 

Update of Specific Issues 
 
The criteria to determine when works are carried out and the emerging 
government guidelines. 
 
The Council’s current Highway Maintenance Plan dated 2013, including highway 
inspections and intervention for defects, is available on the Council’s website at this 
weblink: http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/search/?q=highway%20maintenace%20policy 
Central Government will be releasing the eagerly awaited new Codes of Practice in 
November 2016. The new codes will be a step change towards a risk based approach 
where local Councils must decide their own maintenance standards, which must be risk 
based for all asset classes. Government will allow 2 years for local Councils to adopt 
their own guidelines, being by the end of 2018. However Wokingham is planning to 
undertake the process early to ensure the new approach can be written into the new 
contracts procurement cycle from late 2017, and operating from March 2019. 
 
A move towards more integrated working within the Highways and Transport 
Service and how the 21st Century Council would impact service delivery. 
 
The Highways Alliance members, comprising of the Wokingham Borough Council client 
team; working in partnership with WSP|PB and BBLP, will re-energise partnership 
working for this period prior to new contracts being procured from March 2019 
promoting innovation, trialling new ways of working, delivering service improvement and 
efficiencies aligned with the 21st Century Council operating model. This enhanced 
partnership working and a move to the 21st Century Council operating model will ensure 
greater integration across the Highways and Transport Service, and wider across the 
Council. The 21st Century Council will deliver savings to the Council, however this will 
be through efficiencies, leaner processes and a move to self-serve; therefore no 
detrimental impact on service delivery is predicted. 
 
Initiatives to ensure all defects marked up were repaired and how improvements 
could be made to the overall quality of highway maintenance works. 
 
Over 7,000 works orders are issued to BBLP each year, approximately 3,000 of which 
are for carriageway and footway surface repairs. These 3,000 will often be marked up 
with spray paint before they are repaired. The Alliance currently undertakes an interim 
same day “make safe” for dangerous potholes and defects, and then returns within the 
normal 28 day standard repair time for a permanent and other routine non urgent 
repairs. The Alliance are looking at moving towards a first time permanent repair for 
most works including dangerous potholes and defects, although this will take some time 
to be introduced. The Council also received £159K Department for Transport pothole 
grant for 2016/17. BBLP have provided a pothole gang and truck who are travelling 
around the borough filling potholes from this grant funding. 
 
Through enhanced partnership working across the Alliance, and the introduction of 
weekly Alliance Management meetings since July 2016, service failures and issues are 
raised and discussed between the parties. The Alliance is committed to work in 
partnership to address and improve service delivery as one team. Defects and poor 
quality of works are raised, discussed and joint measures agreed to improve processes 
and procedures moving forward. The Alliance have also started taking advice from 
subject matter experts from within WSP|PB and BBLP to learn from what has worked 
well elsewhere, such as within their own businesses and contracts with other Councils.  

69

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/search/?q=highway%20maintenace%20policy


 
 

 
Improvements to forward planning of highway maintenance works and projects. 
 
Programmes of planned works are currently produced annually, consulted upon with the 
relevant Executive Member, then hosted on the Councils website. Schemes for 16/17 
(up to 31 March) can be found at this link: http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/parking-roads-
and-travel/roadworks-and-new-roads/scheduled-road-maintenance/ 
 
Schemes for 17/18 are currently being prepared and will be available at this weblink 
above shortly. Improvement in Highways Asset Management, including the adoption of 
the policy and strategy documents scheduled for November Executive committee, will 
deliver longer term improvements in asset management across the service, including 
improved planning of works and schemes. Each asset owner, for example for roads, 
bridges, drainage, will be required to produce longer terms plans and programmes 
aligned with revenue and capital budgets. It is intended these programmes will be 
initially to the end of the current Alliance contracts in March 2019, so around two years 
ahead. Longer term the Alliance will be looking to have 5 year programmes to 2021. 
These programmes will be subject to change due to the long timeline and changes to 
the network, demand and priorities over this period. However once prepared the 
programmes will be hugely beneficial for our Alliance partners planning and resourcing 
works and schemes, for co-ordination of works on the highway network and to enable a 
more effective way of communicating all works to residents, businesses and members. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

0 0 0 

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

0 0 0 

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

0 0 0 

 

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 

The costs for this service are provided and delivered within existing contract and budget 
provision for the WSP and BBLP contacts. 

 

Cross-Council Implications (how does this decision impact on other Council services, 
including properties and priorities?) 

No specific cross cutting themes. 

 

List of Background Papers 

None 

 

Contact  Alex Deans Service  Highways and Transport 

Telephone No  0118 9746000 Email  alex.deans@wokingham.gov.uk 

Date  28 October 2016 Version No.   

70

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roadworks-and-new-roads/scheduled-road-maintenance/
http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roadworks-and-new-roads/scheduled-road-maintenance/
mailto:alex.deans@wokingham.gov.uk


 
 

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Work Programme from September 2016 

 

 

Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at short notice.   

The information in this work programme is subject to approval at the Committee meeting scheduled for  

21 November 2016 

 

The order in which items are listed at this stage may not reflect the order they subsequently appear on the agenda / are dealt with 

at the scrutiny meeting.    

All Meetings start at 7.00pm in the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, unless otherwise stated. 

73

A
genda Item

 27.



COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 

 

DATE OF 
MEETING 

ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR 
CONSIDERATION 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER / 
CONTACT OFFICER 

9 January 
2017 

Policing 
Arrangements 

Update on operation of new Bracknell/Wokingham 
policing arrangements. 

Request from the 
Chairman 

Superintendent Rob 
France 

 21st Century 
Council 

To consider an update presentation/report on the 
21st Century Council Change Programme 

Requested by the 
Committee on 20 
June 2016 

Andy Couldrick/ 
Heather Thwaites 

 Civil Parking 
Enforcement (CPE) 

To receive an update report on progress relating to 
the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement  

Requested by 
Alison Dray, Street 
Co-ordination 
Manager 
 

Alison Dray 

 Review of the 
Voluntary Sector 

To consider recommendations following the review 
of the Voluntary Sector in the Borough 

Requested at the 
meeting in March 
2016 

Keith Baker 

 Work Programme To consider the work programme for the committee 
for 2016/2017 so that the resources of the 
committee can be used as effectively as possible.  

Standing Item Democratic Services 

 

74



DATE OF 
MEETING 

ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR 
CONSIDERATION 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER / 
CONTACT OFFICER 

13 Mar 
2017 

Community Safety 
Partnership 

To consider and annual review of the operation of 
the Borough’s Community Safety Partnership 

Required by 
legislation 

Davina Williams 

 Commuter Parking 
Task and Finish 
Group 

To consider prioritisation of the Task and Finish 
Group’s recommendations and the potential for 
income generation arising out of the Crossrail 
project 
 

Requested by the 
Executive 

David Sleight 

 To review the 
potential impact of 
the Government’s 
Right to Buy 
Scheme 

To consider an update on the Government’s Right 
to Buy proposals included in the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016 

Referred by the 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Committee  
 

Simon Price 

 Work Programme To consider the work programme for the committee 
for 2016/2017 so that the resources of the 
committee can be used as effectively as possible.  

Standing Item Democratic Services 

 
 

  

75



 

DATE OF 
MEETING 

ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR 
CONSIDERATION 
 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER / 
CONTACT OFFICER 

June 
2017 

Flood Risk Update 
Report  

 

To consider any local flooding issues arising during 
the winter of 2016/17 

Statutory 
requirement 

Francesca Hobson 

Cycling Issues To consider the impact of new cycle lanes across 
the Borough and cycling safety issues 

Requested by the 
Chairman and Vice-
Chairman 

Alex Deans 

Work Programme To consider the work programme for the committee 
for 2016/2017 so that the resources of the 
committee can be used as effectively as possible.  

Standing Item Democratic Services 

 

76


	Agenda
	19. Minutes of Previous Meeting
	23. Wokingham Town Centre Regeneration
	Town Centre Appendix 1 - Overarching Plans
	Town Centre Appendix 2 - Project Briefing Document
	Town Centre Appendix 3 - Delivering Viable Regeneration
	Town Centre Appendix 4 - Wokingham Regeneration Infographic April 2016

	24. Review of Procurement - Impact of New Procurement Regulations
	25. Highways and Transport Update and Improvements to Work and Scheme Programmes
	27. Work Programme

